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ABBREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS
APP

Annual Performance Plan

CBMT
CHEC
CNC
COS

Compound Based Modular Training
Cape Higher Education Consortium
Computer Numerical Control
Centre of Specialisation

DEDAT
DHET

Department of Economic Development and Tourism
Department of Higher Education and Training

ECD
EDUKTIV
FTE
LRA
M&E

Early Child Development

MTEF

Medium Term Expenditure Framework

MTSF

Medium Term Strategic Framework

NATED
NCV
NDP

National Accredited Technical Education Diploma
National Certificate (Vocational)
National Development Plan

NSDS

National Skills Development Strategy

NSFAS
OPS Plan

National Student Financial Aid Scheme
Operational Plan

PQM

Programme Qualification Mix

PSET

Post-School Education and Training

SC
SETA

Supply Chain
Sector Education and Training Authority

SRC
SSP

Student Representative Council
Sector Skills Plan

SWOT

Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, Threats

TVET

Technical and Vocational Education and Training

UK
VCET

United Kingdom
Vocational and Continuing Education and Training

W&R SETA
WBE

Wholesale and Retail Seta
Workplace Based Exposure/ Experience

WCED
WIL

Western Cape Education Department
Work Integrated Learning

Full-time Equivalent
Local Registration Authority
Monitoring and Evaluation
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PART A: GENERAL OVERVIEW
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1. MESSAGE FROM THE COUNCIL CHAIRPERSON
Northlink takes its role, as a leading provider of skills in the City of Cape Town and specifically
for business and industry in the Northern Suburbs, seriously. We continue to strive for
excellence in our area of Technical Vocational Education and Training. The hard skills that we
impart in a range of critical trades will help drive the growth of our economy and increase
employment locally, city wide, provincially and nationally.
2015 was a tough year for the TVET sector in South Africa, but I congratulate the various roleplayers at Northlink that we could get on with imparting skills and building knowledge and paths
to employment or self-employment. This required diverse but cohesive leadership from
management, academic and support staff. It also required leadership by student
representatives and support from our community. While Council is satisfied with the progress of
Northlink we know we still have a long way to go to be a truly world class location of vocational
learning.
Given the current economic climate we realise that we have to cut our cloth based on available
resources but we are conscious of the need to continue to invest in our hard and soft assets. A
strong emphasis is placed on financial discipline. The Council takes its responsibility in these
regards very seriously.
Council would like to express its gratitude for a positive 2015 to our students, the surrounding
communities they came from and businesses they will be going to, the staff and management at
Northlink and support from other key stakeholders locally, provincially and nationally.
During 2016 I handed over the chairmanship to my Deputy as part of succession planning. I
wish her well and look forward to working with her and other Council members going forward.

G HARRIS
CHAIRPERSON: COLLEGE COUNCIL

DATE: 23 SEPTEMBER 2016
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2. OVERVIEW BY THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER


The 2015 Academic year commenced with the theme “Customer Focus” and registered
over 18 000 students for the year. The primary thrust of the education and training process
related to the increased delivery of Occupational programmes in response to the “Decade
of the Artisan” declared by the Minister of Higher Education and Training, the Honourable
Dr. Blade Nzimande.



The College was deeply saddened by the sudden passing on of Mr. Melvyn Caroline, the
Chairperson of the College Council on 14 March 2015. Mr. Guy Harris immediately assumed
the position in an acting capacity and was later confirmed as the Chairperson of the College
Council.



Subsequent to Mr. Cecil Abrahams, the Chief Financial Officer, not renewing his contract
at the end of 2014, the college welcomed the appointment of Mr. Deon van Rooyen, as the
Deputy Principal: Finance (Acting) with effect of January 2015.



The Student Representative Council under the capable leadership of
Ms. Anga Solwandle of Goodwood Campus, displayed superb student governance, with the
continued support of the Student Support Services staff.



The College appreciated the Conditional Grant of R183m received form the Department of
Higher Education and Training and the additional Bursary allocation of R62m.
Unfortunately, due to the difference in the financial years between the DHET and Northlink
College and the fact that the department retained the amount of R146m for the benefits of
staff who have migrated to the DHET on the PERSAL system, the College produced a
negative balance of R30,8 m at the end of the 2015 Financial year, which should have a
positive effect on the 2016 financial report.



The International Programme for 2015 included staff visits to Burgundy, Wales, Norway and
the UK.



Students, Mia Crous (Parow Campus) and Duwayne Davids (Wingfield Campus)
represented Team South Africa at the 43rd International World Skills Competition which took
place in Sao Paolo, Brazil during August 2015 in Hairdressing and Computer Numerical
Control (CNC) respectively.



Mrs. Trish van der Merwe, Mr. Leon Beech and Mr. Neil Maggott received Long Service
Certificates from the Western Cape Education Department for 30 years’ service in the TVET
College Sector.



During November 2015, the college hosted a successful Golf Day and generated a surplus
in excess of R 86 000.00 towards the College bursary fund.



Mr. Casper Bam, Campus Manager of Belhar Campus, retired in December 2015 and has
served the College sector for a number of years.
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Northlink College, in collaboration with the Peninsula Feeding Scheme, implemented a
Nutrition Programme during 2015 at Parow Campus. The programme benefited more than
800 students with two meals per day. The programme will be implemented at the other six
Campuses during 2016 and intends serving over 5000 students per day.



The College Management sincerely thanks the Department of Higher Education and
Training for their continued support, the College Council and all staff for their positive
contribution during 2015.

LEON BEECH
ACCOUNTING OFFICER: NORTHLINK COLLEGE
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3. STATEMENT of responsibility and CONFIRMATION of ACCURACY
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following:
1.

All information and amounts disclosed throughout the annual report are consistent.

2.

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines issued by the
Department of higher Education and Training.

3.

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the relevant
standards, frameworks and guidelines issued by National Treasury.

4.

The accounting officer, i.e. the Principal, is responsible for the preparation of the annual
financial statements and for the judgements made in this document.

5.

The accounting officer, i.e. the principal, is responsible for establishing and implementing a
system of internal control that has been designed to provide reasonable assurance as to
the integrity and reliability of the performance information, the human resources information
and the annual financial statements.

6.

The Auditor-General and/or external auditors express an independent opinion on the
annual financial statements.

In my opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the
human resources information and the financial affairs of Northlink TVET College for the financial
year ended December 2016

L B Beech
PRINCIPAL

DATE: 23 September 2016
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4. STRATEGIC OVERVIEW
4.1

Vision, Mission and Value Statements

VISION
Where we
want to be

The leading
provider of
Education
and Training
Excellence

STRATEGIC GOALS
AND INITIATIVES
What we are going to do

MISSION
Why we
exist

VALUES
How we
behave

To provide
quality, relevant
and accredited
Education and
Training which
will address the
Skills and
Developmental
needs of all
Stakeholders

-Ensure that innovation,
creativity and responsiveness
remain our driving forces
-Instil a culture of integrity,
loyalty and mutual trust and
respect
-Be accountable, transparent
and promote equality
-Be dedicated to quality and
client satisfaction
-Entrench teamwork and a
culture of lifelong learning
-Be committed to affordability
and accessibility for all

INDIVIDUAL
PERFORMANCE

ORGANISATIONAL
PERFORMANCE

How we manage our
individual performance

How we manage our
collective performance
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4.2 Strategic Objectives 2015
Strategic Goal 1:
Increase the number of skilled youth by expanding access to education and training for
the youth
1.1

Improve recruitment, placement and selection processes.

1.2

Effectively manage bursary administration system.

1.3

Improve throughput and certification rates in NC(V) and Report 191 programmes.

Strategic Goal 2:
Adequately capacitated individual institutions for effective provision or facilitation of
learning
2.1 Improve lecturer capacity to effectively deliver college curriculum
2.2 Improve capacity of management and administrative staff in management,
planning,
performance and financial systems
2.3 Ensure that College Council is effective in its governance and performance management of
college management and staff
2.4 Implement an effective data management, tracking and reporting system
2.5 Provide adequate systems and infrastructure for improved teaching and learning
Strategic Goal 3:
Increase the number of students successfully entering the labour market upon completion
of training
3.1 Improve the capacity of student support service practitioners and lecturers to implement work
based learning
3.2 Improve learner employability by providing increased workplace-based learning
opportunities
Strategic Goal 5:
A College curriculum that is responsive to the demands of the market place and can
transform and adapt quickly and effectively to changing skills needs, with a special
emphasis on artisan training.
5.1 In consultation with SETAs and local industry develop and implement an expanded
PQM that
reflects local economic demand
5.2 Facilitate partnerships with industry, government departments, community
organisations and donors
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number of students successfully entering the labour market upon
5

Legislative and other mandates

5.1

Legislative Framework

In terms of Sections 25(3) and 25(4) of the Continuing Education and Training (CET) Colleges
Act, No. 16 of 2006 (as amended), public technical and vocational education and training (TVET)
Colleges are required to produce annual financial reports and to comply with any reasonable
additional reporting requirement established by the Minister. Moreover, Section 44 of the Act
requires colleges to annually report to the Minister in respect of its performance and its use of
available resources.
In addition, these pieces of legislation govern and steer the college in terms of achievement of its
strategic and performance objectives.
o

National Qualifications Framework (NQF) Act (No 67 of 2008);

o

Higher Education (HE) Act (No 101 of 1997);

o

Skills Development Act (No 97 of 1998);

o

Skills Development Levies Act (no 9 of 1999); and

o

General and Further Education and Training Quality Assurance Act (No 58 of 2001).

In addition, the White Paper for Post-School Education and Training mandates delivery and
strategic priorities in the TVET colleges sector. Other policy mandates include:
o

National Trade Testing Regulations;

o

SETA Grant Regulations;

o

National Skills Development Strategy;

o

Public TVET College Attendance and Punctuality Policy; and

o

Policy on the Conduct of National Examinations and Assessment.

5.2

Annual Cycle of Reporting

The final annual reports of the TVET colleges must be submitted to the Department on the last
day of September the following year. These reports, referred to in Sections 25 and 44 of the
CET Colleges Act, must include:
o

a report on the overall management and governance of the college;

o

a report on its overall performance and use of available resources;

o

duly audited annual financial statements; and

o

any additional information required by the Minister in terms of the Act.
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6. HIGH-LEVEL ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE 2015

DELETE THIS BOX BEFORE YOU SUBMIT YOUR PLAN
Insert organogram of the college and indicate the levels of management up to campus
management level. Indicate vacant posts and acting positons. Also indicate the number of
lecturing and support staff.

VACANT DHET POSTS IN
STUCTURE ABOVE
2
 SENIOR MANAGER: NEW
BUSINESS /
OCCUPATIONAL UNIT
 REGISTRAR

ACTING POSITIONS
IN STRUCTURE
ABOVE
1
DEPUTY PRINCIPAL:
FINANCE

NUMBER OF
EDUCATOR STAFF

NUMBER OF
SUPPORT
STAFF

439

379
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PART B: PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
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1. PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
1.1

Performance Environment

Geographic location: Northlink is an urban College situated in the Northern Metropole of the
City of Cape Town, Western Cape with a Central Office and seven Campuses all within a 30 km
radius.

o The challenges the Western Cape province currently face are firstly that job creation has not
kept pace with economic growth, second, that youth unemployment has grown into a serious
challenge; and third, that a shortage of skills in the labour force act as a constraint on growth
and job creation.
o The main drivers of the local economy are firstly, the services sector (security, tourism,
hospitality, finance, insurance and business services), secondly the goods-producing sector
by the agricultural value chain (including primary production, food processing and beverages).
o The Western Cape Province wants to stimulate economic growth through initiatives such as
the Economic Development Agency, Red Tape reduction, Infrastructure Development, Skills
development and the Expanded Public Works Programme, Transport and Rural Development
and the City of Cape Town programme.
o Northlink College formed partnerships with the Department of Economic Development and
Tourism, Transport and Rural Development, Public Works and the City of Cape Town to
increase the number of skilled learners in all trade by means of CBMT, Learnership and
Artisanship training. Northlink is also involved in a CHEC/ TVET forum where all the
universities are represented and where the focus is to improve articulation and strengthen
collaboration on various levels and terrains.
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2. PERFORMANCE REPORTING
2.1

Significant Achievements during the 2015 Academic Year


Appointment of Mr. Deon Van Rooyen as Deputy Principal: Finance (Acting)



SRC Leadership
o

Chairperson – Anga Solwandle

o

Deputy Chairperson – Chester Baartman

o

Secretary – Nobuzwe Ximiya

o

Treasurer – Justin Jansen



Student Registration: 18275



State Funding





o

Conditional Grant – R 183m

o

Bursary Grant – R62m

International Liaison
o

Burgundy – Hospitality Staff

o

Wales – Ina Louw

o

Norway – Trish van der Merwe/Leon Beech

o

UK – Leon Beech

o

Brazil - Mia Crous/Duwayne Davids (students)

Golf Day
o



R86 000.00 forwards College Bursary Fund

College Nutrition Programme (Parow Campus)
o

Feeding 800 students with two meals per day
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2.2

Annual Performance Achievements / 2.3 College Achievement in terms of Expected Outcomes
Strategic Goal 1:
Increase the number of skilled youth by expanding access to education and training for the youth
Performance Indicator

Target for MTEF cycle

2015 Activities that contribute

(aligned to Strategic

2015/6 – 2017/18

towards achieving College

Targets)

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

Total

Total

Total

Improvement Plan

2015 Performance Targets

ACHIEVED

Quarter

Quarter

Quarter

Quarter

1

2

3

4

23

23

22

22

Strategic Objective 1.1.: Improve recruitment, placement and selection processes.
1.1.1. Number of learners
enrolled in AET Level 14 (quarterly target)
1.1.2. Number of headcounts
enrolled in NC(V) Level
2 (annual target)
1.1.3. Number of headcounts
enrolled in NC(V) Level
3 (annual target)
1.1.4. Number of headcounts
enrolled in NC(V) Level
4 (annual target)
1.1.5. Number of headcounts
enrolled in Report 191
N1-6 trimester
programmes (trimester
target)
1.1.6. Number of headcounts
enrolled in Report 191
N4-6 semester
programmes (semester
target)
1.1.7. Number of headcounts
enrolled in HE or Level 5

90

90

90

1 170

1 230

1 290

618

650

680

505

530

560

7 965

8 360

8 780

6 719

60

7 000

60

7 400

60

WCED Youth Project
 Using Community Recruiters
 Conducting selection on
placement testing
 More improved career guidance
 Using Community Recruiters
 Conducting selection on
placement testing
 More improved career guidance
 Using Community Recruiters
 Conducting selection on
placement testing
 More improved career guidance
 Using Community Recruiters
 Conducting selection on
placement testing
 More improved career guidance
 Using Community Recruiters
 Conducting selection on
placement testing
 More improved career guidance
 Using Community Recruiters
 Conducting selection on
placement testing

2 655

0

1 170

1143

618

559

505

501

2 655

2 655

3 360

3 359

30

30

7458

6302

0
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programmes (semester
target)
1.1.8. Number of students
enrolled in Occupational
and other programmes
(quarterly target)

 More improved career guidance
Expansion
3 365

3 500

3 700

of

MOU/SLA

with

SETA’s, Government Departments

842

841

841

841

2467

and Companies

Strategic Goal 1:
Increase the number of skilled youth by expanding access to education and training for the youth
Performance Indicator
Target for MTEF cycle
2015 Activities that contribute
2015 Performance Targets
(aligned to Strategic
2015/16 – 2017/18
towards achieving College
2015/16 2016/17 2015/18
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Targets)
Improvement Plan
Total

Total

Total

1

Strategic Objective 1.2.: Effectively manage bursary administration system.
1.2.1 Number of students
8979
9294
9785
Means tests DHET NSFAS
3932
awarded bursaries
(quarterly target)
Strategic Objective 1.3.: Improve throughput and certification rates in NC(V) and Report 191 programmes.
1.3.1 % Increase in
 Better placement and selection
throughput rates for
40
45
50
of students in the right
NC(V) L2 (annual target)
programme at the right level
 Better career guidance
 More interventions for students
at risk
 More staff development in
curriculum delivery and content
1.3.2 % Increase in
 Better placement and selection
throughput rates for
40
45
50
of students in the right
NC(V) L3 (annual target)
programme at the right level
 Better career guidance
 More interventions for students
at risk
 More staff development in
curriculum delivery and content
1.3.3 % Increase in
 Better placement and selection
throughput rates for
45
50
55
of students in the right
NC(V) L4 (annual target)
programme at the right level

2

3

4

497

3458

1312

ACHIEVED

9199

40
39

40
45

45

59%
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1.3.4 % Increase in
throughput rates for N1N6 Trimester (trimester
target)

1.3.5 % Increase in
throughput rates for N4N6 Semester (semester
target)

1.3.6 % Increase in
certification rates for
NC(V) L2 (annual target)

1.3.7 % Increase in
certification rates for
NC(V) L3 (annual target)

1.3.8 % Increase in
certification rates for
NC(V) L4 (annual target

50

70

54

55

60

55

72

55

56

61

60

74

56

57

62

 Better career guidance
 More interventions for students
at risk
 More staff development in
curriculum delivery and content
 Better placement and selection
of students in the right
programme at the right level
 Better career guidance
 More interventions for students
at risk
 More staff development in
curriculum delivery and content
 Better placement and selection
of students in the right
programme at the right level
 Better career guidance
 More interventions for students
at risk
 More staff development in
curriculum delivery and content
 Better placement and selection
of students in the right
programme at the right level
 Better career guidance
 More interventions for students
at risk
 More staff development in
curriculum delivery and content
 Better placement and selection
of students in the right
programme at the right level
 Better career guidance
 More interventions for students
at risk
 More staff development in
curriculum delivery and content
 Better placement and selection
of students in the right
programme at the right level

50

50

50
44%

70

70
75%

54
53%

55
50%

60

62%
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 Better career guidance
 More interventions for students
at risk
 More staff development in
curriculum delivery and content

Strategic Goal 1:
Increase the number of skilled youth by expanding access to education and training for the youth
Performance Indicator
Target for MTEF cycle
2015 Activities that contribute
2015 Performance Targets
(aligned to Strategic
2015/16 – 2017/18
towards achieving College
2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Targets)
Improvement Plan
Term 1
Term 2
Term 3
1.3.9 % Increase in
certification rates for N1N6 Trimester (trimester
target)

1.3.10
% Increase in
certification rates for N4N6 Semester (semester
target)

1.3.11
% increase in pass
rate in Maths NC(V) L2
(annual target)

1.3.12
% increase in pass
rate in Maths NC(V) L3
(annual target)

Total

Total

Total

55

56

57

75

54

50

76

55

55

77

56

56

 Better placement and selection
of students in the right
programme at the right level
 Better career guidance
 More interventions for students
at risk
 More staff development in
curriculum delivery and content
 Better placement and selection
of students in the right
programme at the right level
 Better career guidance
 More interventions for students
at risk
 More staff development in
curriculum delivery and content
 Better placement and selection
of students in the right
programme at the right level
 Better career guidance
 More interventions for students
at risk
 More staff development in
curriculum delivery and content
 Better placement and selection
of students in the right
programme at the right level
 Better career guidance

55

55

ACHIEVED

55
49%

75

75
85%

54
53%

50

76%

NORTHLINK TVET College Annual Report 2015
Page 20

1.3.13
% increase in pass
rate in Maths NC(V) L4
(annual target)

1.3.14
% increase in pass
rate in Maths Literacy
NC(V) L2 (annual target)
(annual target)

1.3.15
% increase in pass
rate in Maths Literacy
NC(V) L3 (annual target)

1.3.16
% increase in pass
rate in Maths Literacy
NC(V) L4 (annual target)

1.3.17
% increase in
certification rates of
bursary recipients NC(V)
L2 (annual target)

60

72

82

87

54

62

73

83

88

55

63

74

84

89

56

 More interventions for students
at risk
 More staff development in
curriculum delivery and content
 Better placement and selection
of students in the right
programme at the right level
 Better career guidance
 More interventions for students
at risk
 More staff development in
curriculum delivery and content
 Better placement and selection
of students in the right
programme at the right level
 Better career guidance
 More interventions for students
at risk
 More staff development in
curriculum delivery and content
 Better placement and selection
of students in the right
programme at the right level
 Better career guidance
 More interventions for students
at risk
 More staff development in
curriculum delivery and content
 Better placement and selection
of students in the right
programme at the right level
 Better career guidance
 More interventions for students
at risk
 More staff development in
curriculum delivery and content
 Better placement and selection
of students in the right
programme at the right level
 Better career guidance

60
39%

72
91%

82
96%

87
92%

54

53%
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 More interventions for students
at risk
 More staff development in
curriculum delivery and content
Strategic Goal 1:
Increase the number of skilled youth by expanding access to education and training for the youth
Performance Indicator

Target for MTEF cycle

2015 Activities that contribute

(aligned to Strategic

2015/16 – 2017/18

towards achieving College

Targets)

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

Total

Total

Total

1.3.18
% increase in
certification rates of
bursary recipients NC(V)
L3 (annual target)

55

1.3.19
% increase in
certification rates of
bursary recipients NC(V)
L4 (annual target)

60

1.3.20
% increase in
certification rates of
bursary recipients N1-N6
Trimester (trimester
target)

57

56

61

58

57

62

59

Improvement Plan
 Better placement and selection of
students in the right programme
at the right level
 Better career guidance
 More interventions for students at
risk
 More staff development in
curriculum delivery and content
 Better placement and selection of
students in the right programme
at the right level
 Better career guidance
 More interventions for students at
risk
 More staff development in
curriculum delivery and content
 Better placement and selection of
students in the right programme
at the right level
 Better career guidance
 More interventions for students at
risk
 More staff development in
curriculum delivery and content

2015 Performance Targets

ACHIEVED

Quarter

Quarter

Quarter

Quarter

1

2

3

4

55
50%

60
62%

57

57

57
49%
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1.3.21
%increase in
certification rates of
bursary recipients N4-N6
Semester (semester
target)

75

76

77

 Better placement and selection of
students in the right programme
at the right level
 Better career guidance
 More interventions for students at
risk
 More staff development in
curriculum delivery and content

75

75
85%

Strategic Goal 2:
Adequately capacitated individual institutions for effective provision or facilitation of learning
Performance Indicator

Target for MTEF cycle

2015 Activities that contribute

(aligned to Strategic

2015/16 – 2017/18

towards achieving College

Targets)

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

Total

Total

Total

Improvement Plan

2015 Performance Targets

ACHIEVED

Quarter

Quarter

Quarter

Quarter

1

2

3

4

4

4

4

4

9

4

4

4

4

31

20

20

20

10

23

2

2

2

2

21

Strategic Objective 2.1.: Improve lecturer capacity to effectively deliver college curriculum.
2.1.1 Number of lecturers
trained towards
Improved subject
knowledge (quarterly
target)
2.1.2 Number of lecturers
trained towards
improved classroom
practice (quarterly
target)
2.1.3 Number of lecturers
gaining workplace
exposure (quarterly
target)
2.1.4 Number of lecturers with
teaching and/or
professional
qualifications (quarterly
target)

Will focus mainly on NCV subject
16

20

24

knowledge development

Incorporated
16

20

24

in

Educator

companion training

Ten Lecturers to be place per
80

90

100

campus per year
Unqualified

8

8

8

Lecturers

enrol

at

Tertiary Institutions for Teacher’s
qualification
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2.1.5 Number of lecturers and
SSS practitioners trained
8
8
8
A next round of intervention classes
2
2
2
2
8
to implement onprogramme academic
planned for 2015 onwards
support (quarterly target)
Strategic Objective 2.2.: Improve capacity of management and administrative staff in management, planning, performance and financial systems
2.2.1 Number of personnel
trained in planning
(quarterly target)
2.2.2 Number of personnel
trained in performance
management (quarterly
target)
2.2.3 Number of personnel
trained in financial
management (quarterly
target)

24

Strategic Planning Workshop to be
17

14

15

conducted

7

5

5

14

13

7

7

Workshop held in 2015 to be

13

-

-

-

cascaded
4
3

3

2

Staff in Finance Department to be

-

3

-

-

up skilled
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Strategic Goal 2:
Adequately capacitated individual institutions for effective provision or facilitation of learning
Performance Indicator

Target for MTEF cycle

2015 Activities that contribute

(aligned to Strategic

2015/16 – 2017/18

towards achieving College

Targets)

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

Total

Total

Total

Improvement Plan

2015 Performance Targets

ACHIEVED

Quarter

Quarter

Quarter

Quarter

1

2

3

4

Strategic Objective 2.3.: Ensure that College Council is effective in its governance and performance management of college management and staff
2.3.1 A fully constituted
College Council (annual
target)
2.3.2 Number of Council
members fully inducted
(quarterly target)
2.3.3 Number of Council
members trained in
corporate governance
(quarterly target)

New members to be appointed and
14

14

14

trained

14

14

14

New members to be appointed and

11

11

14

trained
14

14

14

New members to be appointed and

14

14

trained

Strategic Objective 2.4: Implement an effective data management, tracking and reporting system,
2.4.1. Number of staff trained
in data management

10

10

10

ITS training planned for 2015

5

5

(quarterly target)

14

Strategic Objective 2.5: Provide adequate systems and infrastructure for improved teaching and learning
2.5.1 Number of classrooms
and other (e.g.
workshops and training
centres)rooms built
(semester target)
2.5.2 Number of classrooms
and other upgraded or
refurbished (semester
target)

No new classrooms planned for
1

2

1

0

2

0

2015– no funds

2

3

No upgrades planned for 2015 –
no funds
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2.5.3 Number of structures
installed with modern
equipment (fit for
purpose) (semester
target)
2.5.4 % of staff with direct
access to personal
college e-mail (semester
target)

1

No upgrades planned for 2015 –

1

1

85

92%

no funds

85

85

85

Strategic Goal 3:

All Education & Training, Student
Support Services and
Administrative Staff to have access
to email

Increase the number of students successfully entering the labour market upon completion of training
Performance Indicator

Target for MTEF cycle

2015 Activities that contribute

(aligned to Strategic

2015/16 – 2017/18

towards achieving College

Targets)

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

Total

Total

Total

Improvement Plan

2015 Performance Targets

ACHIEVED

Quarter

Quarter

Quarter

Quarter

1

2

3

4

Strategic Objective 3.1.: Improve the capacity of student support service practitioners and lecturers to implement work-based learning
3.1.1

(Number) of Lecturers
and SSS practitioners
trained to implement
work-based learning
(quarterly target)

 Lecturers to give more work
based assignments to students
8
8
8
2
2
 More use of workshops and
simulate practices
 Appoint more Student Support
Practitioners per campus to
assist with work placements
Strategic Objective 3.2.: Improve learner employability by providing increased workplace-based learning opportunities
3.2.1

3.2.2

(Number) of students
placed in workplaces
for workplace exposure
in programme
(quarterly target)
(Number) of students
placed in workplaces
for apprenticeship
training (quarterly
target)

2 000

2 300

2 600

323

330

340

 Assist students with CV and
interviewing skills
 Marketing of graduate students
to industry
 Assist with on-course placement
of students
As

per

MOU/SLA/Apprentice

2

2
4

600

700

700

0

81

81

81

80

1303

490

Contracts

NORTHLINK TVET College Annual Report 2015
Page 26

3.2.3

3.2.4

3.2.5

3.2.6

(Number of students)
placed in workplaces
for learnerships (L2 –
L5) (quarterly target)
Number of post NC(V)
Level 4 students
placed in work places
for experiential
learning (quarterly
target)
Number of post N6
students placed in
work places to
complete diploma
studies (quarterly
target)
Number of student
supported for selfemployment (quarterly)

1 288

1 300

1 350

As

per

MOU/SLA/Apprentice

322

322

322

322

58

60

57

0

36

36

38

0

180

180

180

0

1562

Contracts
175

200

220

Assist

with

placements

via

Placement Officers
Assist
110

120

130

with

placements

540

550

560

via

Placement Officers

Self-employment
provided

as

part

start-up
or

84

93

kits

training

2099

programme

Strategic Goal 5:
A college curriculum that is responsive to the demands of the market place and can transform and adapt quickly and effectively to changing
skills needs, with a special emphasis on artisan training.
Strategic Objective 5.1.: In consultation with SETAs and local industry develop and implement an expanded PQM that reflects local economic demand
Performance Indicator

Target for MTEF cycle

2015 Activities that contribute

(aligned to Strategic

2015/16 – 2017/18

towards achieving College

Targets)
5.1.1 (Number) new
programmes
introduced following
consultation with

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

Total

Total

Total

3

6

7

Improvement Plan
 Establishment of partnerships
 Do proposals to NSF and Seta’s
 Training agreements with
industry

2015 Performance Targets

ACHIEVED

Quarter

Quarter

Quarter

Quarter

1

2

3

4

2

2

1

0

4
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industry (quarterly
target)
5.1.2 (Number) programmes
being reduced
2
1
0
Close Skills IT course
1
0
0
(quarterly target)
5.1.3 (Number) SIPS
programmes relevant
3
4
5
1
1
1
to college responded
to (quarterly target)
5.1.4
Number of lecturing
Identify training needs as per
staff trained to support
5
5
5
induction of new programmes
2
2
1
new courses (quarterly
target)
Strategic Objective 5.2.: Facilitate partnerships with industry, government departments, community organisations and donors
5.2.1 Number of
partnerships with
identified stakeholders
(quarterly target)

20

25

30

MOU/SLA with SETA, Government

5

5

5

0

0

0

0

0

5

5

28

Departments and Companies
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2.2

Strategy to deal with underperformance

Narrative section on dealing with underperformance in terms of the strategic objectives and annual performance
targets:


Identify subjects risk to improve performance



Early identification of students not coping with work and referrals to Students Support Service



Upgrade Open Learning Centres at all campuses for students to Study and do research



Upgrade internet access to staff and students



Do regular customer surveys where students evaluate the teaching and learning process in the
classroom



Implement a Learner Management System (Moodle) where students can have access to lessons and
other learning materials



Implement the Lecturer Management System for the Lecturer to access lessons and other learning
material to be used in the classroom



Compulsory entrance interview with students and parents to give proper career guidance



More classroom visits by Managers with focus on lecturer development



Measure and monitor performance targets of lecturers to improve results



Improving teaching resources in classrooms (Blended Learning & Teaching)



Interventions after each assessment



Giving homework and checking thereof



Working through previous question papers with students



Feedback and discussion of marking guidelines after assessment



Lecturers to specialise in specific subject and best Lecturer to teach N1 and Level 2
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PART C: GOVERNANCE
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1.

CONSTITUTION OF THE COLLEGE COUNCIL AND GOVERNANCE STRUCTURES

o

Names of council chairperson and members as well as their designated functions and the appointments
made in the year in terms of Sections 10(4) and 10(6) of the CET Act:
Appointment

Designation

Function
Chair: College Council

Guy Harris

External - Section 10(4)(b)

External Council Member

Mr

Hermanus Smidt

External - Section 10(4)(b)

External Council Member

Mr

Juwa Dimande

External - Section 10(4)(b)

External Council Member

Mr

Joe Emeran*

External - Section 10(4)(b)

External Council Member

Mr

Mlungisi Mazana

External - Section 10(4)(b)

External Council Member

Chair: HR Committee

Mrs

Alana James

External - Section 10(6)

External Council Member

Chair: Planning and Resource

Mrs

Yolanda Pillay

External - Section 10(6)

External Council Member

Chair: Audit & Risk Committee

Mr

Craig Wright

External - Section 10(6)

External Council Member

Chair: Finance Committee

Mr

Leon Beech

Internal College Member

Principal

Mrs

Alma Janse van
Rensburg
Pamela Albertyn

Internal College Member

College Staff Council Member

Lecture/Academic Rep.

Internal College Member

College Staff Council Member

Support Staff Member

Bradford
van Reizig

Internal College Member

College Staff Council Member

Academic Board Member

Internal College Member

SRC Council Member

Student Representative

Internal College Member

SRC Council Member

Student Representative

INTERNAL
APPOINTEES

Mr
MINISTERIAL
APPOINTEE

Name

COLLEGE
APPOINTEES

Title

Mrs
Mr

*note: deceased council member (2015)
COLLEGE COUNCIL MEETINGS 2015
Four College Council meetings were held during 2015 and four meetings for each of the committees.
Northlink College Council performance and functions were in compliance to Section 10(1) -(3) of the CET
Act as well as the DHET Recommended Council Operating Procedures.
The Northlink College Council established the Subcommittees, namely, The Executive Committee of the
Council; Academic Board; Employment Committee; Audit and Risk committee; Financial Committee; as
well as the Planning and Resource Committee.

The relevant committees were involved in the

development of policies which was approved by the Council. Areas of importance as reflected in the Act,
such as implementation of Student Support services, the development of a Language policy, Admissions
policy were only some of the policies that were developed by the Academic board and recommended for
approval at the Council. Tuition- and accommodation fees and the College Budget were dealt with in the
Finance Committee before approval was given at the College Council. As part of the College Quality
Management system, all policies are reviewed annually.
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2.

COLLEGE PERFORMANCE IN TERMS OF STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
Communities served by the College and its contribution within these communities the
operational year.
Northlink was involved in a few Corporate Social Investment/ Northlink Cares projects:


Khayelitsha & Mitchells Plain Skills Forum – Northlink were offering ECD programmes on their
demand at Goodwood Campus as well as a group of learners off-site at the Mitchells Plain skills
centre.



Career guidance services are offered upon request of some of the local high schools



Northlink embarked on a community awareness project in Ravensmead – Northlink Against
Abuse campaign



Northlink is involved with numerous companies in our surrounding areas with regard to their
training needs

Summary of achievement of the college in terms of the strategic sub-outcome targets:
(numbering as per APP).
1.1: Improve recruitment, placement and selection processes
Develop a placement and selection tool to place students in the correct programme and
level.
Student recruiters are doing a fact finding roadshow yearly to all the campuses to get
updated on developments in programmes, particular marketing needs, etc. to improve their
recruitment strategy
1.2: Effectively manage bursary administration system.
During 2015 the College assisted 8,613 (2014: 8,748) students in obtaining bursaries
from NSFAS.
Effective management of the bursary system of the College was maintained during 2015
and remains of vital importance with the new NSFAS Online Student System going on
PILOT 2016. The College will ensure and assist all its students to be able to obtain bursaries in
line with the required procedures.

1.3: Improve throughput and certification rates in (NCV) and Report 191 programmes.
Do regular customer/ student surveys where students evaluate the teaching and learning
processes in the classroom.
Overall improvement of NC(V) and NATED/Report 191 results regarding throughput,
attendance retention and certification rates.
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2.1: Improve lecturer capacity to effectively deliver college curriculum.
Registered and trained all educators on the Lecturer Management System. Improved
teaching resources in classrooms with laptops, data projectors and internet facilities.

2.2: Improve capacity of management and administrative staff in management, planning
performance and financial system.
CFO and ICT Manager attended a 4-day MIS workshop and systems upgrades and
software package improvements. The Finance Manager attended a 2 - day workshop on
Assets management and recording in terms of the new GRAP system.
A National Examination Forum workshop was attended by the Admin Manager and a 1-

day

regional Procurement seminar for TVET Officers was also attended. All Campus Managers and
Academic Heads were given a 1-day I-enabler training on effective recording of education records
data in the college.
The Admin and ICT Manager and an Officer attended a National M&E training session organised
by DHET.
2.3: Ensure that College Council is effective in its governance and performance
management of college management and staff.
The Northlink College Council has complied with its fiduciary responsibility and obligations
with regards the governance and performance management of the college management
and staff by virtue of its regular meetings and reporting processes. The Chief Executive
Officer submits formal written reports to the College Council, the Executive Committee and
the applicable portfolio committees of the Council. Staff related matters are processed via
the HR Committee and proposals submitted to the College Council for consideration and
approval. The College Council has more oversight of the college appointed staff than those
appointed by the DHET.
2.4: Implement an effective data management, tracking and reporting system.
With the implementation of the online survey hub for M&E reporting, the EDUKTIV data
submission tool and the oracle metadata reporting tool, can data now be managed more
effectively with improved reporting. Reporting tools like Teltrace – (Telephone Reports),
Paessler PRTG – (Bandwidth Monitoring), Service Desk Plus- (Helpdesk, OMD – (Server
and Switch Monitoring) and Ricoh Active Management – (Print Reports & Monitoring) are
used to track, report and manage systems effectively.
The college can now provide a more superior service for teaching and learning with the
implementation of additional bandwidth capacity through TENET. It allows for an improved
internet experience and sets a platform for the roll-out of Wi-Fi access on all college sites.
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This allow any device to connect to Northlink’s Open Access Network
2.5: Provide adequate systems and infrastructure for improved teaching and learning.
Upgrade all open learning centres at all campuses for students to study and do research.
3.1: Improve the capacity of student support service practitioners and lectures to
implement work based learning.
Although Student Support Service practitioners were given opportunities to attend relevant
seminars, internal workshops and other capacity building initiatives to enhance their
service and scope of service, they were not involved with the Work Placements, a
dedicated person was appointed to do that. Student Support service staff were involved
with a number of employability related workshops to enhance the students’ employability
skills.
3.2: Improve learner employability by providing increased workplace-based learning
opportunities.
A dedicated person was employed to steer this with the help of interns at each campus that
collate and coordinate the student placements on the campuses. Some of the lecturers
were assisting with these placements as a result of their engagements with industry over a
period of time.
5.1: In consultation with SETAs and local industry develop and implement and expand
PQM that reflects local economic demand. 5.2 Facilitate partnerships with industry,
government departments, community organization and donors
The College has been involved with at least 15 different SETAs, many government
entities, such as DEDAT, City of Cape Town, WCED, many companies to expand its
delivery of the occupational programmes and to solicit a further source of income. Many
of these companies, for example, Chevron, are in long standing relationships with the
College and see Northlink as their preferred provider. Northlink embarked on projects to
address the local economic demand, one of these projects steered by WCED and W&R
seta, is the Youth Focus project.
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3.

RISK MANAGEMENT
Northlink’s Risk Management process commenced in 2013 and all College Management members were
involved in the process. Since the inception of this process, the College on a regular basis identifies and
assesses risks that impacts its business strategy. Each risk that is identified is assessed and its probability
and potential impact are determined. The risks are evaluated and the controls are identified, both new and
existing, to minimise the impact of the risk. Ownership and accountability for the risk activities are identified.
This enables the College to validate risk coverage and foster a culture in which management understand
their role in executing the College’s risk strategy.
The College adopted the Department Higher Education and Training (DHET) Risk Management Policy and
has a Risk Management process which plays and integral role in influencing behaviours, coordination of
activities, establishing communication protocols, and facilitating risk reporting.
The Management of the college deems Risk Management and integral part of the college processes,
therefore Risk Management a standing item on the monthly Quality Management Review Meeting. At the
Quality Management Review meetings reports are given on any status changes. An electronic risk register
is kept and an action plan was developed to address all risks with a “Very High”, “High” and “Medium” rating.
The Risk Register is submitted to the Audit and Risk Committee of the College Council on a quarterly basis.
An annual review of the risk register is conducted to determine if the risks are still valid, if the controls that
were instituted lowered the Effectiveness Rating of the risks as well as to determine if additional controls are
needed to mitigate the risks.

4.

REPORTS BY COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL

Include in this section narrative reports on activities and performance by the:
4.1 Audit and Risk Committee
The Audit and Risk Committee is a Council Committee whose members are independent of the College,
Executive Management and free from any business or other relationship that could materially interfere with
exercising their independent/objective judgment as member of the Audit and Risk Committee.
The Audit and Risk Committee had four meetings during 2015. In line with Risk Management as detailed under
note 3 to the Annual Report the Committee considered the various risk facing the College and conducted its
meetings to ensure that it covered the various risk as identified.
The following matters of importance were discussed and recommended to the Council, where
appropriate:


Supporting and recommending to the Council, for consideration, the Audited Financial Statements for
2015;
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Supporting and recommending to the Council, for consideration, the Institutional Risk Register;



Supporting and recommending to the Council, for consideration, the revised Charter of the Committee;



Supporting and recommending to the Council, for consideration, the revised Financial Policies as
issued by the DHET;
Supporting and recommending to the Council, for consideration, the Risk Management Implementation



Plan for 2016;
Supporting and recommending to the Council, for consideration, the appointment of the Internal Auditors



on a three-year rotation plan being KPMG to perform the various agreed upon procedures and reviews;
Confirming the external auditors being the Auditor General’s Service Plan and Fees for the financial year



ending 31 December 2015;
Agreeing that further engagement take place to ascertain the Key Performance Indicators to be used to



determine if the College’s benchmark performance was being met in terms of management and its
responsibilities;
Discussing and noting the various reports that relates to its function requirements.



Based on the information provided in the various report above, it is evident that Risk Management is an
integral part of the strategic and operational activities of the College and not a standalone process driven
by its own. The Committee will continue with its work to ensure that College Risk and Predetermined
Objectives are reviewed and monitored during 2016.
4.2 Finance Committee
The Finance Committee is a Council committee whose members are independent of the College. The
Executive Management and those free from any business or other relationship that could materially interfere
with exercising their independent/objective judgment as member of the Audit and Risk Committee form also
part of the Committee.
The Finance Committee had four meetings during 2015.
The following matters of importance were discussed and recommended to the Audit and Risk Committee
and to the College Council, where appropriate:




Supporting and recommending to the Council, for consideration, the Audited Financial Statements
for 2015;
Supporting and recommending to the Council, for consideration, the re-appointment of KPMG as
internal
Confirming the External Auditors, being the Auditor General’s, their Client Service & Audit Plan for the
year ending 31 December 2015;



Approving the proposed external audit fees for 2015;



Approving the Three-Year Strategic Internal Audit Plan and associated fees;



Discussing and noting the various reports in relationship to its function base and that as tasked by the
External and Internal Auditors;



Discussing and recommending to Council the various quarterly reports as tabled by the Finance
Department of the College.
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In 2015, the Committee continued to focus on cost consciousness and effectiveness and sustainable
resource generation. An additional focus was raising bursary funding from external sponsors. The
Committee also required an increased monitoring of the NSFAS Bursary allocations due to the College and
its associated risk implied.
To ensure future sustainability, it is important that the College places additional effort on increasing
unencumbered commercial income and donor income and decreasing student dependency on NSFAS and
Governmental Support in its efforts of expansion.
Based on the information provided in the various reports as tabled at each meeting during 2015 above, it is
evident that good financial management is an integral part of the strategic and operational activities of the
College and not a standalone process driven only by the Audit and Risk Committee. To this fact the Finance
Committee will strive to ensure that the College remains financial sound and a going concern.
4.3 Employment Committee
The College Council Employment Committee (EmployCo) had four meetings during 2015. The Committee
also attended a Workshop on the Amended LRA of 2015 and its effect on the employment of staff on
contract. The Committee further approved training interventions for the establishment of the College
Employment Equity Forum., reviewed the performance appraisals of staff and monitored the Misconduct,
Incapacity and Grievance reports on a quarterly basis. The Committee was also active in the selection and
interviewing processes of staff for promotion post and adopted a committee charter.
4.4 Planning and Resource Committee
The Planning and Resource Committee was chaired by Mrs Alana James. The terms of reference were
finalised. The process of the DHET Strategic and Operational Planning was clarified and discussed in depth,
as well as the Budget process as well as the topical matter at the time, the “Migration of staff” to DHET.
The topics that was discussed was the DHET Operational Plan 2015, the Annual Performance Plan 2015
and the Northlink Strategic Plan. Input was received from the committee towards these plans, i.e. The key
business drivers, Targets for 2015, Northlink goals, Proposed game changers and the theme and values
for 2015. Feedback was given on the progress and status of these matters during the course of the year.
External council members were also invited and attended the Management Planning workshop in
September 2015 to give input into the plans of 2016.
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5.

ACADEMIC BOARD REPORT
The Academic Board consist of 37 members, two from College Council, two from SRC and the rest from
Northlink College Managers and educator staff. The Academic Board had four meetings during 2015
which was chaired by the Principal of Northlink College, Mr Leon Beech. Academic Board reports were
presented at the College Council meetings for notification and approval.

6.

STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE COUNCIL REPORT
The Student Representative Council/ Student Council (SRC/SC) consists of 46 members across 7
campuses. These members are governed by the SRC Constitution to serve their fellow students. Some
of these members attended imperative meetings such as; DHET Portfolio Committee Meeting, College
Council, Academic Board and Financial Aid Committee meetings.
The SRC had their first Leadership training facilitated by the Student Support Services Department. This
training prepares them for completing tasks to fulfil their roles as SC members on their respective
campuses. They also attended the NSFAS TVET Workshop, a Transformational Leadership Training
and the Student Leadership in the 21st century workshop hosted by DHET.
Community projects included various activities held on campuses including Youth and Mandela Day
events to allow students on campuses to benefit. The SRC then selected the SOS Children’s Villages as
their community outreach project. They donated clothing, stationery and food items to the home and
spend some time interacting with the children.
Ekurhuleni East College’s SRC visited Northlink College’s SRC to share information and learn from best
practices. The SRC was awarded for their commitment and diligence at the SRC Awards Ceremony at
the end of 2015.
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PART D: FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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1.

COUNCIL RESPONSIBILITY AND APPROVAL
As contained in the Annual Financial Statements of the College for the year ended 31 December 2015
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2. REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER
2015 Financial Overview
The Annual Report includes the Audited Annual Financial Statements.
With effect from January 2013 the College is reporting its results in terms of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (“GRAP”).
The 2015 financial year, given the adoption of GRAP, did not deliver a positive result with the years reported
results, ending with a negative result of R 30,8m (2014: surplus of R19,1m. GRAP Restated) The College
however ended with a positive cash surplus of R 15,7m (2014: R23,5m).
The College transferred its permanent employees on to the DHET’s Persal System with effect 01 April 2015
resulting in a substantial loss to the College of interest revenue as well as having to apply the new DHET,
College Subsidy System, which is not in line with that of the College financial year. This resulted in additional
revenue of R38,2m being deferred to 2015.
The financial results as presented, has not been adjusted due to the qualified audit report issued by the
Auditor-General for 2015 as explained in detail in their report as included in the annual report as contained
the College full set of issued financial statements.
The audit opinion received does not relate to fraud or mismanagement of College funds, but to the
interpretations on the adoption of GRAP in terms of prescription of student debt, which the College has once
again undertaken to review during 2016, and if so required, to adjust with the next reporting results as well
as restate the 2015 results that will be seen as a positive result.
The new College Council, appointed to office during the 2014 financial year, has undertaken to assist the
College to ensure that the Auditor-General, in future reports on the College results without any qualifications
and that these committees will, as in the past, be of great support and reliance in the financial management
of the College affairs.
The College remains focused on growth and invested R 11,5m (2014: R15,4m) on new capital items and
infrastructure improvement. The cash flow forecast for 2016 is positive and will ensure that the College
retains its ability to meet its expenses and liabilities and remain a going concern.
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3.

REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
The Audit and Risk Committee is a Council Committee whose members are independent of the College,
Executive Management and free from any business or other relationship that could materially interfere
with exercising their independent/objective judgment as member of the Audit and Risk Committee.
The Audit and Risk Committee had four meetings during 2015.
In line with Risk Management as detailed above, the Committee considered the various risk facing the
College and conducted its meetings to ensure that it covered the various risk as identified.
The following matters of importance were discussed and recommended to the Council, where
appropriate:


Supporting and recommending to the Council, for consideration, the Audited Financial Statements
for 2015;



Supporting and recommending to the Council, for consideration, the Institutional Risk Register;



Supporting and recommending to the Council, for consideration, the revised Charter of the
Committee;



Supporting and recommending to the Council, for consideration, the revised Financial Policies as
issued by the DHET;



Supporting and recommending to the Council, for consideration, the Risk Management
Implementation Plan for 2016;



Supporting and recommending to the Council, for consideration, the appointment of the Internal
Auditors on a three-year rotation plan being KPMG to perform the various agreed upon procedures
and reviews;



Confirming the external auditors being the Auditor General’s Service Plan and Fees for the financial
year ending 31 December 2015;



Agreeing that further engagement take place to ascertain the Key Performance Indicators to be used
to determine if the College’s benchmark performance was being met in terms of management and its
responsibilities;



Discussing and noting the various reports that relates to its function requirements.

Based on the information provided in the various report above, it is evident that Risk Management is an
integral part of the strategic and operational activities of the College and not a standalone process
driven by its own. The Committee will continue with its work to ensure that College Risk and
Predetermined Objectives are reviewed and monitored during 2016.
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4. REPORT OF AUDITOR GENERAL
As contained in the Annual Financial Statements of the College for the year ended 31 December 2015
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5. ANNUAL AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NORTHLINK TVET COLLEGE

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2015
GENERAL INFORMATION

Controlling entity
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NORTHLINK TVET COLLEGE

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2015
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2015

______________________________________________________
2015
2014*
Note

R

R

57,633,138

80,752,395
22,874,362

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

3

15,741,479

Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions

4

30,756,058

Inventories

6

763,736

Other receivables from non-exchange transactions, including taxes and transfers
Other investments

5

8

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

9

Total assets

10,168,825

203,039

23,309,535

33,148,727

1,228,127
191,645

147,764,157

150,379,198

205,397,295

231,131,593

68,157,375

62,365,106

65,338,150

56,654,528

169,250

1,619,494

147,764,157

150,379,198

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Operating lease liability

7

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions

10

Taxes and transfers payable

11

Borrowings

13

Unspent conditional grants and receipts

12

Non-current liabilities

170,033

1,942,675
537,266

1,234,848

2,385,520
470,716

12,062,882

12,787,847

12,029,284

12,584,214

80,220,257

75,152,953

Net assets

125,177,038

155,978,639

Total net assets and liabilities

205,397,295

231,131,593

Operating lease liability

7

Borrowings

13

Total liabilities

Accumulated surplus / (deficit)

33,597

125,177,038

-

* Restated as disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements.
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203,632

155,978,639

-

NORTHLINK TVET COLLEGE

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2015
Statement of Financial Performance

___________________________________________________________
2015
2014*
Note
R
R

Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions

Tuition and related fees

14

Sale of goods and rendering of services

15

Investment income

17

Rental of facilities and equipment

16

Other income

Government grants and subsidies

316,179,471

20

216,602,583

200,476,601

22

14,143,617

12,866,252

12,185,787

10,699,528

2,429,202

2,689,313

Repairs and maintenance

23

24

Finance costs

25

Business Unit Expenses

12,859,865

155,557,515

11,141,330
3,179,976

1,226,925

Printing and stationery

5,026,379

Travel, accommodation and entertainment

2,756,125

Network and communication costs

8,487,753

Students expenses

1,458,762

Student program costs and learning materials
General expenses

26

Total expenses

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year
* Restated as disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements.
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359,579

295,522,372

21

Contracted services

3,704,416

193,706,671

Debt impairment

Depreciation and amortisation

424,947

107,493,979

155,557,515

Total revenue

Employee related costs and DHET management fee

3,277,974

1,120,176

19

Expenses

122,043,977

122,472,800

1,358,094

18

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

139,964,857

28,556,490

19,129,044

9,794,651

193,706,671

1,291,598

5,354,111
1,271,833
4,510,928
7,160,462
2,516,126

4,657,386

27,102,550

16,447,590

326,323,973

297,044,280

(30,801,601)

19,135,191

NORTHLINK TVET COLLEGE

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2015
Statement of Changes in Net Assets

________________________________________________________________

Note

Accumulated Surplus
R

Balance at 31 December 2013
Correction of errors*

30

Balance at 01 January 2014 as restated
Surplus for the year*
Surplus for the year

136,843,448

136,843,448

155,978,639

155,978,639

125,177,038

* Restated as disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements.
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R

132,166,727

4,676,721

(30,801,601)

Balance at 31 December 2015

Total: Net Assets

132,166,727

19,135,191

Balance at 01 January 2015 as restated

37

4,676,721

19,135,191

(30,801,601)

125,177,038

NORTHLINK TVET COLLEGE

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2015
Cash Flow Statement

______________________________________________________
2015
2014*
Note

R

R

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts

Tuition fees

100,719,584

59,565,654

Government grants and subsidies

69,065,939

174,187,855

Other Receipts

15,224,038

26,956,932

(108,581,350)

(200,476,601)

(1,226,925)

(1,271,833)

Sale of goods and rendering of services

3,641,393

Interest

1,358,094

Payments

Employee costs
Suppliers

(75,739,202)

Finance costs
Net cash flows from operating activities

28

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of capital assets

Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Net cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of long-term borrowings

Net cash flows from financing activities

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

3

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

(11,529,853)

(15,397,118)

(11,395)

(16,733)
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-

(11,541,248)

(15,413,851)

(488,379)

(444,131)

(7,568,056)

(1,373,779)

15,741,479

23,309,535

23,309,535
-

* Restated as disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements.

(49,638,514)

14,484,203

(488,379)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

1,120,176

4,461,571

-

Movement in investments and interests

4,040,534

(444,131)

24,683,314
-

NORTHLINK TVET COLLEGE
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015
1.00 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.01 Presentation of Financial Statements and Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) and in the manner prescribed by the Minister of
Higher Education and Training in terms of the Continuing Education and Training Act No. 16 of 2006, as amended.

These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with the historical cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless
specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand.
In the absence of an approved and effective Standard of GRAP, accounting policies for material transactions, events or conditions were developed in accordance with paragraphs 8, 10
and 11 of GRAP 3 as read with Directive 5.
Assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses were not offset, except where offsetting is either required or permitted by a Standard of GRAP.
A summary of the significant accounting policies are disclosed below.
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous year, except for the changes set out in note 29.
1.02 Presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the college.
1.03 Going concern assumption
These financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the college will continue to operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months.
1.04 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty
The use of judgement, estimates and assumptions is inherent to the process of preparing financial statements. These judgements, estimates and assumptions affect the amounts
presented in the financial statements. Uncertainties about these estimates and assumptions could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the
relevant asset or liability in future periods.
Judgements
In the process of applying these accounting policies, management has made the following judgements that may have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:
Programme funding
Programme funding is allocated to the college by DHET in terms of the CET Act and the National Norms and Standards for Funding of TVET Colleges and is determined by the
estimated Full Time Equivalent Students (FTEs) of the college. The allocation is done based on the projected FTEs for the year and if the college fails to register the projected FTEs, a
portion of the programme funding can be clawed back in the following year.

The programme funding is allocated by DHET during their financial year which is from April to March, but for the college the funds pertain to the college academic and financial year
which is from January to December. Once the college has registered the projected number of FTEs, the condition of the programme funding grant has been met and the grant is
recognised in full.
The programme funding is paid out partly in cash tranches, paid to the college, and partly through the Persal system of the Provincial Education Department, directly to the employees of
the college. If management personnel are paid from the programme funding, they should be included in the description. The method and timing of payment of the grant does, however,
not influence the recognition of revenue.
Employee related costs and DHET management fee
In terms of the CET Act and DHET Circular 1 of 2015, with effect from 1 April 2015, all non-management personnel of the college, appointed and remunerated through the Department
of Education in the Province (PERSAL) and the provincial allocation or programme funding, have migrated to DHET and are DHET employees. Non-management personnel not
remunerated from provincial allocations or programme funding remain employees of the college as they are appointed by the college. For the period 1 January to 31 March 2015, nonmanagement personnel still remained employees of the college.

For the period 1 January to 31 March 2015
Management and other personnel are either remunerated directly by the college or by the provincial Department of Education, via Persal, on behalf of DHET. As management personnel
are not college employees, their remuneration cannot be classified as an employee expense of the college and is therefore classified as "DHET management fee".
For the period 1 April to 31 December 2015
Management and other personnel (excluding college employees) are remunerated by DHET via Persal. The remuneration of these personnel cannot be classified as an employee
expense of the college and is therefore classified as "DHET management fee".
Campuses used and controlled, but not owned by the college
Certain campuses are used by the college and are not registered in the name of the college. The lack of legal ownership could affect whether or not the college has control over the
campus. Where, inter alia, beneficial control can be illustrated, the campus in question is recognised, measured and included in the financial statements as property, plant and
equipment in terms the definition of an asset as per the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements and the definition of Property, Plant and Equipment in
GRAP 17 Property, Plant and Equipment.
Estimates
Estimates are informed by historical experience, information currently available to management, assumptions, and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. These estimates are reviewed on a regular basis. Changes in estimates that are not due to errors are processed in the period of the review and applied prospectively.
In the process of applying the college’s accounting policies the following estimates, were made:
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NORTHLINK TVET COLLEGE
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015
Debt impairment
The college assesses its trade receivables, held to maturity investments and loans and receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In determining whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the college makes judgements as to whether there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from a financial asset.

The impairment for trade receivables, held to maturity investments and loans and receivables is calculated on a portfolio basis, based on historical loss ratios, adjusted for national and
industry-specific economic conditions and other indicators present at the reporting date that correlate with defaults on the portfolio. These annual loss ratios are applied to loan balances
in the portfolio and scaled to the estimated loss emergence period.
Refer to the respective notes for the carrying amounts of financial assets impaired.

Allowance for slow moving, damaged and obsolete inventory
In making an allowance to write inventory down to the lower of cost or net realisable value, management have made estimates of the selling price and direct cost to sell on certain
inventory items. The write down is included in the surplus or deficit. For inventory consumed in the supply of services for no or nominal charge, management have made an estimate of
the current replacement cost of such inventory and as appropriate have reduced the carrying amount accordingly.
Refer to Note 6 for the carrying amounts of inventories affected.

Non-financial asset impairment
In testing for, and determining the value-in-use of non-financial assets, management is required to rely on the use of estimates about the asset’s ability to continue to generate cash
flows (in the case of cash-generating assets). For non-cash-generating assets, estimates are made regarding the depreciated replacement cost, restoration cost, or service units of the
asset, depending on the nature of the impairment and the availability of information.
Refer to the respective notes for the carrying amounts of non-financial assets impaired.

Provisions
Provisions are measured at the present value of the estimated future outflows required to settle the obligation. In the process of determining the best estimate of the amounts that will be
required in future to settle the provision management considers the weighted average probability of the potential outcomes of the provisions raised. This measurement entails
determining what the different potential outcomes are for a provision as well as the financial impact of each of those potential outcomes. Management then assigns a weighting factor to
each of these outcomes based on the probability that the outcome will materialise in future. The factor is then applied to each of the potential outcomes and the factored outcomes are
then added together to arrive at the weighted average value of the provisions.
Allowance for doubtful debts
On debtors an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and deficit when there is objective evidence that it is impaired. The impairment is measured as the difference between the
debtors carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate, computed at initial recognition.
Useful lives and residual values of assets; depreciation and amortisation
The college's management determines the estimated useful lives and residual values of all non-current, non-financial assets. These estimates are based on industry norms and then
adjusted to be entity specific. Management determines at reporting date whether there are any indications that the college's expectations of useful lives or residual values have changed
from previous estimates. Where indications exist the expected useful lives or residual values are revised accordingly.
Depreciation and amortisation recognised on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets respectively are determined with reference to the useful lives and residual values of the
underlying items. The useful lives and residual values of assets are based on management’s estimation of the asset’s condition, expected condition at the end of the period of use, its
current use, expected future use and the college’s expectations about the availability of finance to replace the asset at the end of its useful life. In evaluating the how the condition and
use of the asset informs the useful life and residual value management considers the impact of technology and minimum service requirements of the assets. Generally, depreciation is
accrued over the useful lives of assets on a straight-line basis.
Refer to the respective notes for the carrying amounts of non-financial assets affected.

Effective interest rate
The college uses an appropriate interest rate, taking into account guidance provided in GRAP, and applying professional judgement to the specific circumstances, to discount future
cash flows, to the present value of the item being discounted.
Refer to the respective notes for the carrying amounts of financial assets affected.
Fair value determination of properties (excluding heritage assets)
In determining the fair value of investment property (and / or property, plant and equipment ) donated or acquired for no consideration, the college applies a valuation methodology to
determine the fair value of the properties based on any one of, or a combination of the following factors:
- The market related selling price of the property; or
- The market related rental that can be earned for the property; or
- The market related selling price of similar properties in the area; or
- The rentals currently or previously earned by the property.

Where the above information is not available or reliably determinable the college determines an approximation of fair-value by estimating the Depreciated Replacement Cost of the asset
as described in Directive 7 The Application of Deemed Cost on the Adoption of Standards of GRAP.
Refer to the respective notes for the carrying amounts of properties affected.
1.05 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or
for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one reporting period.
Recognition and measurement
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
- it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the college; and
- the cost or fair value of the item can be measured reliably.
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NORTHLINK TVET COLLEGE
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015
Property, plant and equipment include:
- Land and buildings
- Machinery and equipment
- Motor vehicles
- Furniture and fittings
- Office Equipment
- IT Equipment
- Audiovisual Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. (Cost Model)
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.
Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or assets, or a combination of assets and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is
initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.
The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the
college is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories.
Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management.
Major spare parts and stand by equipment which are expected to be used for more than one period are included in property, plant and equipment. In addition, spare parts and stand by
equipment which can only be used in connection with an item of property, plant and equipment are accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which meet the recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in
the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining inspection costs from the previous inspection are derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated residual value. Refer to table below for the estimated useful
lives:
Estimated useful lives
The annual depreciation rates are based on the following estimated asset useful lives:
Class
Land and Buildings
Land
Buildings
Other Assets
Machinery and equipment
Motor vehicles
Furniture and fittings
Office Equipment
IT Equipment
Audiovisual Equipment

Useful Life Range in Years
Indefinite Life
50
5-10
5-7
5-7
5-7
3
3-5

At reporting date it is assessed whether there are any indications that the college's expectations of useful lives or residual values have changed from previous estimates. Where
indications exist the expected useful lives or residual values are revised accordingly.
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately.
The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from
the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.
Deemed cost
When the college initially recognises an asset using the Standards of GRAP, it measures such assets using either cost or fair value at the date of acquisition (acquisition cost). Where
the accounting for assets is incomplete at the start of the reporting year as the acquisition cost of an asset is not available at that time, acquisition cost is measured using a surrogate
value (deemed cost) at the date the college adopted the Standards of GRAP (the measurement date). Deemed cost is determined as the fair value of an asset at the measurement date.
1.06 Intangible assets

An asset is identifiable if it either:
- is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an college and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract,
identifiable assets or liability, regardless of whether the college intends to do so; or
- arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are transferable or separable from the college or from other rights and
obligations.

A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers similar rights and obligations on the parties to it as if it were in the form of a contract.
The College does not have any Intangible Assets.
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NORTHLINK TVET COLLEGE
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015
1.07 Heritage assets

Heritage assets are assets that have a cultural, environmental, historical, natural, scientific, technological or artistic significance and are held indefinitely for the benefit of present and
future generations.
The College does not have any assets classified as Heritage assets.

1.08 Financial instruments

The college recognises financial assets using trade date accounting.
The college measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs (for financial instruments at amortised cost) that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of the financial instrument.
The college first assesses whether the substance of a concessionary loan is in fact a loan. On initial recognition, the college analyses a concessionary loan into its component parts and
accounts for each component separately. The college accounts for that part of a concessionary loan that is:
- a social benefit in accordance with the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements, where it is the issuer of the loan; or
- non-exchange revenue, in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers), where it is the recipient of the loan.
The college measures all financial instruments after initial recognition as follows:
- Financial instruments at fair value: Fair-value at reporting date
- Financial instruments at amortised cost: Amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment losses.
- Financial instruments at cost. Cost, less any impairment losses.

Where the college cannot reliably measure the fair value of an embedded derivative that has been separated from a host contract that is a financial instrument at a subsequent reporting
date, it measures the combined instrument at fair value. This requires a reclassification of the instrument from amortised cost or cost to fair value.
If fair value can no longer be measured reliably for an investment in a residual interest measured at fair value, the college reclassifies the investment from fair value to cost. The carrying
amount at the date that fair value is no longer available becomes the cost.
If a reliable measure becomes available for an investment in a residual interest for which a measure was previously not available, and the instrument would have been required to be
measured at fair value, the college reclassifies the instrument from cost to fair value.
A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair value is recognised in surplus or deficit.

For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or deficit when the financial asset or financial liability is
derecognised or impaired, or through the amortisation process.
Impairment and uncollectability of financial assets
The college assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
Financial assets measured at amortised cost:
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced directly OR through the use of an allowance account (debt impairment provision) . The amount of the loss is
recognised in surplus or deficit.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed directly OR by adjusting an allowance account. The reversal does not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit.
Financial assets measured at cost:
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an investment in a residual interest that is not measured at fair value because its fair value cannot be
measured reliably, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed.
The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated between the rights or obligations retained and those transferred on the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date.
Newly created rights and obligations are measured at their fair values at that date. Any difference between the consideration received and the amounts recognised and derecognised is
recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer.
If the college transfers a financial asset in a transfer that qualifies for derecognition in its entirety and retains the right to service the financial asset for a fee, it recognise either a servicing
asset or a servicing liability for that servicing contract. If the fee to be received is not expected to compensate the college adequately for performing the servicing, a servicing liability for
the servicing obligation is recognised at its fair value. If the fee to be received is expected to be more than adequate compensation for the servicing, a servicing asset is recognised for
the servicing right at an amount determined on the basis of an allocation of the carrying amount of the larger financial asset.

If, as a result of a transfer, a financial asset is derecognised in its entirety but the transfer results in the college obtaining a new financial asset or assuming a new financial liability, or a
servicing liability, the college recognise the new financial asset, financial liability or servicing liability at fair value.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part transferred qualifies for derecognition in its entirety, the previous carrying amount of the larger financial asset is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is derecognised, based on the relative fair values of those parts, on the date of the transfer. For this purpose,
a retained servicing asset is treated as a part that continues to be recognised. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part derecognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part derecognised is recognised in surplus or deficit.
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NORTHLINK TVET COLLEGE
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015
If a transfer does not result in derecognition because the college has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the transferred asset, the college continue to
recognise the transferred asset in its entirety and recognise a financial liability for the consideration received. In subsequent periods, the college recognises any revenue on the
transferred asset and any expense incurred on the financial liability. Neither the asset, and the associated liability nor the revenue, and the associated expenses are offset.
Financial liabilities
The college removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financial position when it is extinguished — i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled, expires or waived.

An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as having extinguished the original financial liability and a
new financial liability is recognised. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it is accounted for as having extinguished the original
financial liability and having recognised a new financial liability.
The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any noncash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or assumed by another college by way of a non-exchange
transaction are accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers).
A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when the college currently has a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the college does not offset the transferred asset and the associated liability.
1.09 Statutory receivables

Funding receivable from DHET arise from non-contracted arrangements as the basis for DHET funding is found in the Division of Revenue Act. Cash receivable from DHET as part of
programme funding is regarded as a "statutory receivable".
The statutory receivable is initially measured at the transaction amount and subsequently measured using the cost-method, which changes the initial measurement to reflect any
impairment or amounts derecognised. Other elements of the DHET programme funding are only recorded once DHET has effected the transaction (i.e. payment of staff through
PERSAL) and no receivable is recorded as the amount associated is not paid in cash or another financial asset.
The statutory receivable is included in Other receivables from non-exchange transactions. Refer to note 5.

1.10 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.
When a lease includes both land and building elements, the college assesses the classification of each element separately.
Finance leases - lessee
Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the DBSA interest rate.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of on the remaining balance of the liability.
Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Operating leases - lessor
Operating lease revenue is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the
same basis as the lease revenue.

The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental revenue over the lease term on a straight-line basis. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis. Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in statement of financial performance.
Operating leases - lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between the amounts recognised as an expense and the
contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.
1.11 Inventories

Inventories are assets:
- in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process;
- in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed or distributed in the rendering of services;
- held for sale or distribution in the ordinary course of operations; or
- in the process of production for sale or distribution

Recognition and measurement
Inventories are recognised as an asset if:
- it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
- the cost of the inventories can be measured reliably

Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange transaction, then their costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Subsequently inventories held for commercial purposes are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for;
- distribution through a non-exchange transaction; or
- consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.
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Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,
exchange or distribution.
Current replacement cost is the cost the college incurs to acquire the asset on the reporting date.
The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and segregated for specific projects is assigned using specific identification of the
individual costs.
The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average cost formula. The same cost formula is used for all inventories having a similar nature and use to the college.
Recognition as an expense
When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised. If there is no related
revenue, the expenses are recognised when the goods are distributed, or related services are rendered. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value or current
replacement cost and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories,
arising from an increase in net realisable value or current replacement cost, are recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which
the reversal occurs.
1.12 Impairment of cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the college with the primary objective of generating a commercial return. When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that
adopted by a profit-orientated college, it generates a commercial return.
The College does not have any cash-generating assets.

1.13 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the college with the primary objective of generating a commercial return. When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that
adopted by a profit-orientated entity, it generates a commercial return.
Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or
service potential through depreciation (amortisation).
Criteria developed by the college to distinguish non-cash-generating assets from cash-generating assets are as follow:
When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, it is impaired. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. Any
impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

The college assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a non-cash-generating asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the college estimates the
recoverable service amount of the asset.
Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the college also test a non-cash-generating intangible asset with an indefinite useful life or a non-cash-generating intangible
asset not yet available for use for impairment annually by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable service amount. This impairment test is performed at the same time every
year. If an intangible asset was initially recognised during the current reporting period, that intangible asset was tested for impairment before the end of the current reporting period.
Value in use
Value in use of non-cash-generating assets is the present value of the non-cash-generating assets remaining service potential.
The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating assets is determined using the following approach:
Depreciated replacement cost approach
The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating asset is determined as the depreciated replacement cost of the asset. The replacement cost of an asset is
the cost to replace the asset’s gross service potential. This cost is depreciated to reflect the asset in its used condition. An asset may be replaced either through reproduction
(replication) of the existing asset or through replacement of its gross service potential. The depreciated replacement cost is measured as the reproduction or replacement cost of the
asset, whichever is lower, less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost, to reflect the already consumed or expired service potential of the asset.

The replacement cost and reproduction cost of an asset is determined on an “optimised” basis. The rationale is that the college would not replace or reproduce the asset with a like asset
if the asset to be replaced or reproduced is an overdesigned or overcapacity asset. Overdesigned assets contain features which are unnecessary for the goods or services the asset
provides. Overcapacity assets are assets that have a greater capacity than is necessary to meet the demand for goods or services the asset provides. The determination of the
replacement cost or reproduction cost of an asset on an optimised basis thus reflects the service potential required of the asset.
Recognition and measurement
When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the non-cash-generating asset to which it relates, the college recognises a liability only to the
extent that is a requirement in the Standards of GRAP.

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating
asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
Reversal of an impairment loss
The college assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If any such indication exists, the college estimates the recoverable service amount of that asset.
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An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable
service amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable service amount. The increase is a reversal of an
impairment loss. The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating
asset is treated as a revaluation increase.
After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cashgenerating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
Redesignation
The redesignation of assets from a cash-generating asset to a non-cash-generating asset or from a non-cash-generating asset to a cash-generating asset only occur when there is clear
evidence that such a redesignation is appropriate.
1.14 Unspent Conditional Government Grants and Receipts

Conditional government grants are subject to specific conditions. If these specific conditions are not met, the monies received are repayable.
Unspent conditional grants are financial liabilities that are separately reflected on the Statement of Financial Position. They represent unspent government grants, subsidies and
contributions from government organs.

This liability always has to be cash-backed. The following provisions are set for the creation and utilisation of this creditor:
· Unspent conditional grants are recognised as a liability when the grant is received.
· When grant conditions are met, an amount equal to the conditions met, are transferred to revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.
· The cash which backs up the creditor is invested as an individual investment or part of the general investments of the college until it is utilised.
· Interest earned on the investment is treated in accordance with grant conditions. If it is payable to the funder it is recorded as part of the creditor. If it is the college’s interest, it is
recognised as interest earned in the Statement of Financial Performance.
1.15 Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an college in exchange for service rendered by employees.

Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a result of either:
- an entity’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date; or
- an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits.

Other long-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than post-employment benefits and termination benefits) that are not due to be settled within twelve months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service.
Vested employee benefits are employee benefits that are not conditional on future employment.

A constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where by an established pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current
statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain responsibilities and as a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties
that it will discharge those responsibilities.

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service.

When an employee has rendered service to the college during a reporting period, the college recognise the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for that service:
- as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds the undiscounted amount of the benefits, the college recognise that
excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and
- as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset.
The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating
absences, when the absence occurs. The college measure the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the college expects to pay as a
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.
The college recognise the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the college has a present legal or constructive obligation to make such payments
as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. A present obligation exists when the college has no realistic alternative but to make the payments.
Post-employment benefits
Post-employment benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) which are payable after the completion of employment. The College does not provide any Postemployment benefits.
Termination benefits
The college recognises termination benefits as a liability and an expense when the college is demonstrably committed to either:
terminate the employment of an employee or group of employees before the normal retirement date; or
provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made in order to encourage voluntary redundancy.

The college is demonstrably committed to a termination when the college has a detailed formal plan for the termination and is without realistic possibility of withdrawal. The detailed plan
includes [as a minimum]:
the location, function, and approximate number of employees whose services are to be terminated;
the termination benefits for each job classification or function; and
the time at which the plan will be implemented.
Implementation begins as soon as possible and the period of time to complete implementation is such that material changes to the plan are not likely.
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Where termination benefits fall due more than 12 months after the reporting date, they are discounted using an appropriate discount rate. The rate used to discount the benefit reflects
the time value of money. The currency and term of the financial instrument selected to reflect the time value of money is consistent with the currency and estimated term of the benefit.
In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the measurement of termination benefits shall be based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Other long-term employee benefits
Other long-term employee benefits includes:
- long-term compensated absences such as long service or sabbatical leave;
- other long service benefits;
- long-term disability benefits;
- bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable twelve months or more after the end of the reporting '- period in which the employees render the related service;
- deferred compensation paid twelve months or more after the end of the reporting period in which it is earned; and
- compensation payable by the college until an individual enters new employment.

The amount recognised as a liability for other long-term employee benefits the net total of the following amounts:
- the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date
- minus the fair value at the reporting date of plan assets (if any) out of which the obligations are to be settled directly
The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment using the above accounting methodology. Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to surplus or deficit in the period in which they arise. These obligations are valued annually by independent
qualified actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

For other long-term employee benefits, the college recognise the net total of the following amounts as expense or revenue, except to the extent that another Standard requires or permits
their inclusion in the cost of an asset:
- current service cost;
- interest cost;
- the expected return on any plan assets and on any reimbursement right recognised as an asset;
- actuarial gains and losses, which shall all be recognised immediately;
- past service cost, which shall all be recognised immediately; and
- the effect of any curtailments or settlements

DHET management fee
In terms of the CET Act, the college is the employer of the non-management personnel. The management personnel, defined in the CET Act as the principal and deputy principals, have
migrated to DHET and are DHET employees.

Management and other personnel are either remunerated directly by the college or by the provincial Department of Education, via Persal, on behalf of DHET. As management personnel
are not college employees, their remuneration cannot be classified as an employee expense of the college and is therefore classified as "DHET management fee".
1.16 Provisions and contingencies

A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the entity.
A contingent liability is:
- a possible obligation that arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the entity; or
- a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:
- it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation; or
- the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Provisions are recognised when:
- the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
- it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation; and
- a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.
Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement is recognised when it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received if the college settles the obligation.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the obligation.
Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This increase is recognised as an interest expense.
A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised. Provisions are not recognised for future operating deficits.
If an college has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and measured as a provision.
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A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when a college:
Has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least:
- the activity/operating unit or part of a activity/operating unit concerned;
- the principal locations affected;
- the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for services being terminated;
- the expenditures that will be undertaken; and
- when the plan will be implemented; and
- has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it.
A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those that are both:
- necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and
- not associated with the ongoing activities of the college.
No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of an operation until the college is committed to the sale or transfer, that is, there is a binding arrangement.
After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in college combinations that are recognised separately are subsequently measured at the higher of:
- the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and
- the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in notes 32 & 33.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.
Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.

The entity recognises a provision for financial guarantees and loan commitments when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits and service potential will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.
Determining whether an outflow of resources is probable in relation to financial guarantees requires judgement. Indications that an outflow of resources may be probable are:
- financial difficulty of the debtor;
- defaults or delinquencies in interest and capital repayments by the debtor;
- breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that result in it being payable earlier than the agreed term and the ability of the debtor to settle its obligation on the amended terms; and
- a decline in prevailing economic circumstances (e.g. high interest rates, inflation and unemployment) that impact on the ability of entities to repay their obligations.

Where a fee is received by the entity for issuing a financial guarantee and/or where a fee is charged on loan commitments, it is considered in determining the best estimate of the
amount required to settle the obligation at reporting date. Where a fee is charged and the college considers that an outflow of economic resources is probable, an entity recognises the
obligation at the higher of:
- the amount determined using in the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and
- the amount of the fee initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange
Transactions.
1.17 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to
contributions from owners.
An exchange transaction is one in which the college receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of
cash, goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.
Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:
- the entity has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;
- the entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;
- the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
- it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity; and
- the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Rendering of services
When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:
- the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
- it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the college;
- the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and
- the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.
When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is recognised on a straight line basis over the specified time frame unless there is
evidence that some other method better represents the stage of completion. When a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed
until the significant act is executed.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are
recoverable.
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Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date.
Interest, royalties, dividends and tuition fees
Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest, royalties and dividends or similar distributions is recognised when:
- It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity, and
- The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.
Royalties are recognised as they are earned in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements.
Dividends or similar distributions are recognised, in surplus or deficit, when the college’s right to receive payment has been established.
Tuition fees are recognised over the period of instruction.
1.18 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by an entity, which represents an increase in net assets, other than increases
relating to contributions from owners.
Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form
of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another entity in exchange.
Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, an entity either receives value from another entity without directly giving
approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to another entity without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.
Recognition
An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same
inflow.

As the college satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying
amount of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of revenue equal to that reduction.
Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the college.
When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the college recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the
date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability. Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle
the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is subsequently reduced, because the taxable event
occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability is recognised as revenue.

Transfers
Apart from Services in kind, which are only recognised as indicated below, the college recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet the definition of
an asset and satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset.
The college recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset.
Transferred assets are measured at their fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Debt forgiveness and assumption of liabilities
The college recognise revenue in respect of debt forgiveness when the former debt no longer meets the definition of a liability or satisfies the criteria for recognition as a liability, provided
that the debt forgiveness does not satisfy the definition of a contribution from owners.
Revenue arising from debt forgiveness is measured at the carrying amount of debt forgiven.

The College follows the rules of Prescription. In terms hereoff all its financial instruments are linked to the prescription rules and applied yearly. The net income relating to prescription is
accounted for in the year of prescribtion as "Prescribed Income".
Bequests
Bequests that satisfy the definition of an asset are recognised as assets and revenue when it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential will flow to the entity, and
the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.
Gifts and donations, including goods in-kind
Gifts and donations, including goods in kind, are recognised as assets and revenue when it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential will flow to the entity and the
fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.
Services in-kind
Services in kind are not recognised.
Concessionary loans received
A concessionary loan is a loan granted to or received by a property, plant and equipment on terms that are not market related. The portion of the loan that is repayable, along with any
interest payments, is an exchange transaction and is accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Financial Instruments. The off-market portion of the loan is a nonexchange transaction. The off-market portion of the loan that is recognised as non-exchange revenue is calculated as the difference between the proceeds received from the loan, and
the present value of the contractual cash flows of the loan, discounted using a market related rate of interest.

The recognition of revenue is determined by the nature of any conditions that exist in the loan agreement that may give rise to a liability. Where a liability exists the cash flow statement
recognises revenue as and when it satisfies the conditions of the loan agreement.
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1.19 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
1.20 Comparative figures
When the presentation or classification of items in the financial statements is amended due to better presentation and/or better understandability and/or comparability and/or due to the
implementation of a new or amended standard, prior period comparative amounts are reclassified. Where accounting errors have been identified in the current year, the correction is
made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly. Where there has been a change in accounting policy in the current year, the
adjustment is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly.
1.21 Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research is recognised as an expense when it is incurred. An asset arising from development is recognised when:
- it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale,
- there is an intention to complete and use or sell it,
- there is an ability to use or sell it,
- it will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential,
- there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset, and
- the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably.

1.22 Related parties
A related party is a person or a college with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or exercise significant influence over the other party, or vice versa, or an college that is
subject to common control, or joint control. In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, and not merely the legal form.

Significant influence may be exercised in several ways, usually by representation on the governing body but also, for example, by participation in the policy-making process, material
transactions between entities within an economic college, interchange of managerial personnel or dependence on technical information.
Significant influence may be gained by an ownership interest, statute or agreement or otherwise. With regard to an ownership interest, significant influence is presumed in accordance
with the definition contained in the Standard of GRAP on Investments in Associates.
Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the college, including those charged with the governance of the college in accordance
with legislation, in instances where they are required to perform such functions.
Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that management in their dealings with the
college.
Only transactions with related parties not at arm’s length or not in the ordinary course of business are disclosed.
1.23 Commitments
Commitments disclosed in the annual financial statements represents the balance commited to capital projects as well as operating expenditure on the reporting date that will be
incurred in the period subsequent to the specific reporting date.
1.24 Events after the reporting date
Events after the reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date and the date when the financial statements are authorised for
issue. Two types of events can be identified:
- those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting date); and
- those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting date).

Reporting date means the date of the last day of the reporting period to which the financial statements relate. The reporting date of the college is 31 December 2015.
The college adjusts the amounts recognised in its financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting date. The college does not adjust the amounts recognised in its
financial statements to reflect non-adjusting events after the reporting date.
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2015

Note

R

2014
R

Standards, amendments to Standards, Directives and
2 Interpretations issued but not yet effective
The following GRAP and / or amendments thereto have been approved by the Accounting Standards Board, but will only become effective in future
periods or have not been given an effective date by the Minister of Finance. The college has not early-adopted any of these new Standards or
amendments thereto, but has referred to them for guidance in the development of accounting policies in accordance with GRAP 3 as read with
Directive 5:
Standard name

Standard number

Investment Property

GRAP16

Effective date (Periods
starting on or after)
Friday, April 1, 2016

Property, Plant and Equipment

GRAP17

Friday, April 1, 2016

Increased disclosure
relating to Repairs and
Maintenance and Longoverdue projects. Reassessment of useful
lives and residual
values on a indicator
basis - not annually.
Encouraged disclosure
removed.

Segment Reporting

GRAP18

Wednesday, April 1, 2015

No impact as the
college is seen as one
entity and separate
reporting are not done.

Related Party Disclosures

GRAP20

Not yet set

Revenue from Non-Exchange transactions

GRAP23

Wednesday, April 1, 2015

The impact has been
assessed and the
necessary disclosure
will be made when the
standard
becomes
effective.

Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor

GRAP32

Not yet set

Transfers of Functions Between Entities Under Common Control

GRAP105

Wednesday, April 1, 2015

Transfers of Functions Between Entities not Under Common
Control

GRAP106

Wednesday, April 1, 2015

Mergers

GRAP107

Wednesday, April 1, 2015
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Expected impact
Clarification
of
conditions necessary
to classify property as
investment property.
Increased disclosure
relating to Repairs and
Maintenance and Longoverdue projects.

The effect of services
in kind
will be
assessed
when
effective.
No impact as the
college does not have
any
service
concession
arrangements.
No impact as the
college does not have
any
transfers
of
functions
between
entities under common
control.
No impact as the
college does not have
any
transfers
of
functions
between
entities not under
common control.
No impact as there are
no mergers.
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Note

2015

2014
The impact has been
assessed and the
necessary disclosure
will be made when the
standard
becomes
effective.

R

R

Statutory Receivables

GRAP108

Not yet set

Accounting by Principals and Agents

GRAP109

Not yet set

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

GRAP6 (revised 2010)

Wednesday, April 1, 2015

Investments in Associates

GRAP7 (revised 2010)

Wednesday, April 1, 2015

Interests in Joint Ventures

GRAP8 (revised 2010)

Wednesday, April 1, 2015

Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities

IGRAP11

Wednesday, April 1, 2015

Jointly Controlled Entities – Non-Monetary Contributions by
Venturers

IGRAP12

Wednesday, April 1, 2015

Interpretation of the Standard of GRAP on Service Concession
Arrangements Where a Grantor Controls a Significant Residual
Interest in an Asset

IGRAP 17

Not yet set

Changes in Measurement Bases Following the Initial Adoption of
Standards of GRAP

Directive11

Wednesday, April 1, 2015

The Selection of an Appropriate Reporting Framework by Public
Entities

Directive12

Sunday, April 1, 2018

No impact as there are
no principal and agent
relationships at the
college.

No impact as the
college is not part of a
group
and
will
therefore not provide
consolidated financial
statements.
No impact as the
college does not have
any investments in
associates.
No impact as the
college does not have
any interests in joint
ventures.
No impact as the
college does not have
any special purpose
entities.

No impact as the
college does not have
any jointly controlled
entities.
No impact as the
college does not have
any
service
consession
arrangements.

No impact as the
college already applied
the
changes
in
measurement bases
following the initial
adoption of standards
of GRAP in the prior
year.
No impact as the
college
already
adopted the standards
of GRAP in the prior
year.

3 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:
Cash on hand

10,016

Cash at bank

10,424,591

Call deposits - 30-32 Day Notice

-

Call investments

5,161,575

National Skills Fund

145,297

15,741,479

The entity has the following bank accounts:
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1,695

13,283,466

10,000,000
-

24,374

23,309,535
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2015

Note

2014

R

R

ABSA

Investment Account 7186042481

Cash book balance at beginning of year

-

10,000,000

-

10,000,000

Cash book balance at end of year

-

Bank statement balance at end of year

-

Bank statement balance at beginning of year

-

NEDBANK

Money Market Account 48065524

Cash book balance at beginning of year

10,000,000

Bank statement balance at beginning of year

10,000,000

Cash book balance at end of year

Bank statement balance at end of year

-

-

10,000,000

-

10,000,000

-

NEDBANK

Cheque Account 1186 101 377

Cash book balance at beginning of year

11,955,631

Bank statement balance at beginning of year

11,967,615

Cash book balance at end of year

Bank statement balance at end of year

14,053,587

9,559,591

11,955,631

9,576,061

11,967,615

600,484

530,834

600,484

530,834

14,065,042

NEDBANK

Cheque Account 1186 103 523 (Building)
Cash book balance at beginning of year

Cash book balance at end of year

627,908

Bank statement balance at end of year

627,908

Bank statement balance at beginning of year

600,484
600,484

ABSA

Cheque Account 4083722580

Cash book balance at beginning of year

727,351

-

Cash book balance at end of year

237,091

727,351

Bank statement balance at end of year

237,091

727,351

24,374

96,815

24,374

96,815

-

-

-

-

10,016

1,695

15,741,479

23,309,534

Bank statement balance at beginning of year

727,351

-

NEDBANK

Cheque Account 1030 601 762 (NSF)

Cash book balance at beginning of year

Cash book balance at end of year

145,297

Bank statement balance at end of year

145,297

Bank statement balance at beginning of year

24,374
24,374

NEDBANK

Investment Account 7186042481

Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year

5,161,575

Bank statement balance at end of year

5,161,575

Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Cash on hand
Total cash and cash equivalents
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2015

Note

2014

R

R

Cash and cash equivalent balances that are not available for
use by the college

314,547

Cash on hand relating to conditional grants where the grant
conditions have not been met
National Skills Fund

169,250

1,619,494

145,297

24,374

NSFAS monies relating to student allowances

-

1,643,868
-

Details

These funds have been allocated to the College for specific
transactions. While the revenue has been recognised in terms of
GRAP, the College cannot utilise these funds for normal operations
unless conditions are meet. See note 19 for additional information.
4 Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions
Gross Balances
31 December 2015

R

Student debtors

64,164,741

Other student debtors

9,631,734

Prepayments

458,377

Deposits

Other receivables

Unallocated deposits

Less: Provision for debt impairment
Total trade and other receivables

Less: Provision for debt impairment
Total trade and other receivables

458,377

-

(20,307,325)

377,676
-

56,531,775

53,981,678

Other receivables

9,631,734

(20,307,325)

Student debtors

Unallocated deposits

38,389,024
2,206,572

R

Deposits

-

R

-

31 December 2014

Prepayments

(25,775,717)

Net Balance

2,206,572

Gross Balances

Other student debtors

Provision for Doubtful
Debts
R

3,779,232
651,335

-

-

(25,775,717)
Provision for Doubtful
Debts
R
(16,662,538)
-

377,676
-

30,756,058
Net Balance
R
37,319,140
3,779,232

651,335

4,515,555

-

4,515,555

(23,450,954)

-

(23,450,954)

60,054
-

39,536,900

Students: Ageing

Current (0 – 30 days)
31 - 60 Days

-

-

22,874,362

389,054

152,003

574,452

91 - 120 Days

5,486,879

121 + Days

57,391,107

Total

64,164,741

Other student debtors: Ageing

Current (0 – 30 days)

-

(16,662,538)

323,249

61 - 90 Days

60,054

820,039

329,995
885,713

4,403,607

48,210,361
53,981,678

53,515

31 - 60 Days

6,148,799

91 - 120 Days

2,167,607

2,471,991

Total

9,631,734

3,779,232

61 - 90 Days

495,290

121 + Days

-
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748,590
-

NORTHLINK TVET COLLEGE

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015

2015

Note

2014

R

Reconciliation of the doubtful debt provision
Balance at beginning of the year

R

16,662,538

Contributions to provision this year

11,141,330

Doubtful debts written off against provision during the year

(2,028,152)

Balance at end of year

15,760,517

1,291,598
(389,577)

25,775,717

16,662,538

Statutory receivable: Government grants and subsidies (Refer also note 19)

10,168,825

33,148,727

Total other debtors

10,168,825

33,148,727

Carrying value of inventory

763,736

1,228,127

Finished Goods

186,852

576,188

53,937

81,651

5 Other receivables from non-exchange transactions, including taxes and transfers
Less: Provision for debt impairment

-

-

6 Inventories
Consumable stores

53,937

Program Material

522,947

Consumable stores include:
Stationery and paper

44,383

Coffee/Tea/Sugar

-

Cartridges

9,554

81,651

570,288
56,702

1,116

23,833

Inventory carried at net realisable value

The following classes of inventory are carried at Net Realisable Value:
Finished Goods

186,852

Total

186,852

-

Inventory carried at current replacement cost

The following classes of inventory are carried at current replacement cost:
Consumable stores

53,937

Finished Goods

-

Program Material

522,947

Total

576,884

Inventory write-down during the year

181,967

Write down of inventory

81,651

576,188

570,288

1,228,127

-

7 Operating leases
At the reporting date the college has outstanding commitments
under operating leases which fall due as follows:
Operating lease arrangements
Lessee
Relating to contractual services
At the reporting date the college had outstanding commitments
under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:
Up to 1 year
1 to 5 years
More than 5 years

2,003,945
181,235
2,185,180

Operating Leases consists of the following:
Leases are negotiated for an average term of 36 - 60 months. No
contingent rent is payable
Escalation clauses are as per contract, unless not specified in
contract it is assumed to be 8 - 9%.
No restrictions imposed by lease arrangements.
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2015

Note

2014

R

Operating Leases Liability
The straightlining operating lease payments have resulted in the
following Operating Lease Liability
Short term portion
Long term portion

Lease and sublease payments recognised in the statement of
financial performance
Minimum lease payments

R

170,033
33,597
203,631

1,234,848
203,632
1,438,480

7,288,552
7,288,552

6,784,782
6,784,782

8 Other investments
Listed Investments

1

6,558

Other

203,038

185,087

Current portion

203,039

191,645

Total

203,039

191,645

203,039

Non-current portion

-

Details of pledged investments include the following:
Listed Investments:

Old Mutual PLc shares held by College on behalf of Staff Gratuity
Scheme.
Details of other investments include the following:
AIMS Investment Account 100216412
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9 Property, plant and equipment
Cost

Land & Buildings

Machinery and Equipment
Motor Vehicles

R

136,234,240
24,490,601

4,124,031

Furniture and Fittings

14,889,709

IT Equipment

43,855,840

Office Equipment

Audiovisual Equipment
Total

Reconciliation of Property Plant and Equipment - 2015

Land & Buildings

Machinery and Equipment
Motor Vehicles

Furniture and Fittings
Office Equipment
IT Equipment

Audiovisual Equipment
Total

13,762,509

4,538,980

241,895,910

2015

Accumulated
Depreciation and
Impairment
R

(3,853,566)

270,465

4,124,031

(17,013,309)

7,477,292

5,363,455

14,190,957

(28,313,056)

15,542,784

42,071,376

(94,131,752)

147,764,157

(11,024,979)

(2,763,704)

5,904,025

1,945,295
-

2,737,530

Acquisitions
through entity
combinations
R
-

-

-

21,727,938

1,784,461

-

150,379,198

11,529,853

527,840

4,011,144

230,367,333

Disposals
R

(1,277)
-

-

698,753
669,479

13,093,030

1,775,276

5,416,418

2,006,380

22,545,305

(9,526,254)

R

2,684,863

R

130,331,490

R

510,075

R

114,597,356

Additions

6,792,507

Cost

(21,636,884)

Carrying Value
Opening Balance
111,241,018

Carrying Value

-

-

-

-

-

(1,277)
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2014

Accumulated
Depreciation and
Impairment
R

(19,090,472)
(15,752,798)

(3,613,956)

21,727,938

(79,988,134)

150,379,198

(2,004,764)

R

-

-

(616,813)

-

(758,944)

(14,143,617)

2,684,863

2,006,380

Impairments

(239,611)

(7,969,613)

510,075

(20,343,438)

(10,408,167)

R

(751,715)

6,792,507

5,416,418

Transfers

(1,260,511)

R

111,241,018

(8,774,539)

Depreciation

(2,546,410)

Carrying Value

-

-

-

R

-

-

Carrying Value
Closing Balance
R

114,597,356
7,477,292
270,465

-

5,363,455

-

15,542,784

-

147,764,157

-

2,737,530
1,775,276
-
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Reconciliation of Property Plant and Equipment - 2014

Land & Buildings

Machinery and Equipment
Motor Vehicles

Furniture and Fittings
Office Equipment
IT Equipment

Audiovisual Equipment
Total

Carrying Value
Opening Balance

Additions

R

R

105,066,897
6,129,663

749,686

8,711,731

Acquisitions
through entity
combinations
R

Disposals
R

Depreciation

Transfers

Impairments

R

R

R

(2,537,610)

1,709,746

R

111,241,018

(1,046,902)

-

Carrying Value
Closing Balance

6,792,507

(239,611)

510,075

5,056,208

977,864

(617,654)

5,416,418

25,499,139

3,449,374

(7,220,576)

21,727,938

147,848,332

15,397,118

3,148,407

2,198,332

101,058

447,345

(564,602)

-

-

PPE for which the college does not have the legal title, but has control
Legal title vesting in;

Provincial Government - Western Cape
Terms and conditions

The property vest in favour of the Provincial Government of the Western Cape. The Western Government
has started with the process to obtain Cabinet approval for transfer to the College.
The following Properties are involved;
Protea Campus
Central Office

Goodwood Campus
Legal title vesting in;

National Government of the Republic of South Africa
Terms and conditions

The property vest in favour of the Provincial Government of the Western Cape. The Western Government
has started with the process to obtain Cabinet approval for transfer to the College.
The following Properties are involved;
Wingfield Campus
Bellville Campus

Refer to the Register of Properties that are under management and control of the College for full details of Land and Buildings.
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(639,297)

(12,866,252)

2,684,863

-

-

2,006,380

150,379,198
-
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2015

Note

2014

R

R

10 Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
Trade creditors and accruals
Payments received in advance
College Bursary Funds
Accrued Expenses
Other Creditors
Total creditors

14,237,648
48,134,452
155,760
1,069,701
1,740,589
65,338,150

7,765,340
46,900,208
260,377
819,758
908,844
56,654,528

Taxes and transfers payable (Exchange)

1,942,675

2,385,520

Total Taxes and transfers payable

1,942,675

2,385,520

Fair value of trade and other payables
Trade payables are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
College Bursary Fund:
The college bursary fund is a public funded fund for the purpose of funding certain
privileged students.

11 Taxes and transfers payable

12 Unspent conditional grants and receipts

19

Unspent Conditional Grants from other spheres of Government
National Skills Fund
Infrastruct. Subsidy (2013)

-

1,619,494
979,840
639,654

Other Unspent Conditional Grants and Receipts
Skills development

169,250
169,250

-

Total Unspent Conditional Grants and Receipts

169,250

1,619,494

Non-current portion of unspent conditional grants and receipts
Current portion of unspent conditional grants and receipts

169,250

1,619,494

Annuity Loans - Development Bank of Southern Africa ("DBSA")
Term of the loan is 18 years, the repayment is over 216 equal
monthly installments of R 142,942 commencing on the 28
February 2010. the loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 9,56%
per month.
The loan is an unsecured loan. The fair value of current
borrowings equals their carrying amount, as the interest rates are
considered market related. The carrying amounts of the College's
borrowings are denominated in South African Rands.

12,566,551

13,054,930

12,566,551

13,054,930

Total borrowings (Current)
Annuity Loans - Development Bank of Southern Africa ("DBSA")

537,266
537,266

470,716
470,716

12,029,284

12,584,214

27,129,547
4,220,892
1,344,055
51,455,778
144,173
84,294,445

22,410,327
2,890,577
3,392,284
43,686,064
155,066
72,534,318

13 Borrowings

Other borrowings
Total borrowings

Total borrowings (Non-Current)

14 Tuition and related fees
Tuition fees paid directly by students or private bursaries
Tuition fees - students (Report 191)
Tuition fees - students (NCV)
Residential and Transport fees
Skills, Learnerships and Partnerships
Other
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2015

Note

2014

R

Tuition fees funded by NSFAS bursaries
Tuition fees - students (Report 191)
Tuition fees - students (NCV)
Residential fees
Transport fees
Total Tuition Fees

R

16,567,036
16,796,536
4,385,960
37,749,532

15,447,709
17,125,102
2,386,850
34,959,661

122,043,977

107,493,979

2,995,375
268,199
3,263,574

3,315,418
381,897
3,697,316

14,400
14,400

7,100
7,100

3,277,974

3,704,416

(2,429,203)

(2,689,313)

125,513
299,434
424,947

166,940
192,639
359,579

1,328,381
29,713
1,358,094

1,120,176
1,120,176

15 Sale of goods and rendering of services
Sale of goods relating to business units of the college:
Sales: Product Sales
Sales: Intercampus
Rendering of services
Non-student residents and other accommodation fees
Total sale of goods and rendering of services
Costs incurred by the College
16 Rental of facilities and equipment
Hire of Halls
Office and Workshop Rental

17 Investment income
Interest - Bank
Other interest
Total interest income
Dividends

-

Total investment income

-

1,358,094

1,120,176

4,894,724
41,795
15,861
157,047
7,750,438
12,859,865

1,896,382
(169)
26,318
22,070
248,912
7,601,138
9,794,651

18 Other income
From exchange transactions
Sundry income
Profit/(Loss) on Sale of Fixed Assets
Admin Costs recovered
Bad Debts Recovered
Insurance Claim Income
Prescribed Income

19 Government grants and subsidies
Reconciliation of Movement - 2015

Programme funding: Grants services in kind
Programme funding: Grants paid via NPNC
NSF Funding
Infrastructure Subsidy
Other Government Grants and Subsidies
Total Government Grant and Subsidies

Balance unspent at
beginning of year

Current year
receipts

R

979,840
639,654
1,619,494
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R
107,264,484
36,505,939
1,745,521
8,554,166
792,000
154,862,110

Conditions met - Conditions not met transferred to
transferred to
revenue
payables
R
R
(107,264,484)
(36,505,939)
(1,970,521)
(754,840)
(9,193,820)
(622,750)
(155,557,515)
(754,840)

Conditions still to
be met - remain
liabilities
R
169,250
169,250
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2015

Note
Reconciliation of Movement - 2014

R

Balance unspent at
beginning of year

Programme funding: Grants paid via Persal
Programme funding: Grants paid via NPNC
NSF Funding
Infrastructure Subsidy
Other Government Grants and Subsidies
Total Government Grant and Subsidies

Current year
receipts

R

2,687,094
3,998,095
539,950
7,225,139

R
95,195,000
77,794,000
6,980,359
8,131,667
188,101,026

2014
R

Conditions met - Conditions not met transferred to
transferred to
revenue
payables
R
R
(95,195,000)
(77,794,000)
(8,687,613)
(11,490,108)
(539,950)
(193,706,671)
-

20 Employee related costs and DHET management fee
Employee related costs
Employee related costs - Salaries and Wages
Employee related costs - Contributions for UIF, pensions and medical aids
Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and other allowances
Housing benefits and allowances
Overtime payments
Performance and other bonuses
Leave Payouts
WCA
Staff recruitment costs
Staff development costs
Other employee related costs(including 37% in Lieu of Service Benefits)
DHET management fee cost
Employee related costs - Salaries and Wages
Employee related costs - Contributions for UIF, pensions and medical aids
Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and other allowances
Housing benefits and allowances
Performance and other bonuses
Other employee related costs
DHET management fee cost
Payments made by WCED for Executive Management (Jan - March 2015)
PERSAL payments by DHET (April - December 2015) - Services In Kind

86,732,903
3,552,967
490,228
404,672
879,844
39,497
113,695
34,104
746,492
15,586,947
108,581,349

152,786,009
12,024,082
206,285
1,968,763
1,077,232
5,337,071
48,416
166,631
55,048
116,431
23,333,073
197,119,041

80,740,185
9,540,090
28,322
1,420,381
4,427,949
11,864,308
108,021,234

2,281,360
535,048
333,078
14,690
193,133
251
3,357,560

756,750
107,264,484
108,021,234

Total employee related costs and DHET management fee

216,602,583

200,476,601

In terms of the CET Act, employees are employees of the college and are accountable to the governance structures of the college.
Management are defined by the CET Act as the principal and deputy principals and they are employed by DHET and have dual
accountability towards the council and DHET respectively.
During the 2015 financial year, a large number of staff previously paid by the College counsel migrated to the DHET. These employees
are now being remunerated by the DHET which resulted in the decrease in the employee related costs and an increase in the DHET
management fee costs and are now reported as services in kind.
In-kind Benefits
The DHET by contractual agreement with SAICA has made
available the services of the Deputy CEO - Finance (Mr MD van
Rooyen) for the year under review.

21 Debt impairment
Changes in debt impairment provision

11,141,330
11,141,330

(Refer to note 4 for details on the debt impairment.)

Page 27

1,291,598
1,291,598

Conditions still to
be met - remain
liabilities
R
979,840
639,654
1,619,494

NORTHLINK TVET COLLEGE

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015

2015

Note

R

2014
R

22 Depreciation and amortisation
Property, plant and equipment

9

14,143,617
14,143,617

12,866,252
12,866,252

3,085,412
94,564
3,179,976

5,202,637
151,474
5,354,111

801,253
6,242,648
4,561,932
579,954
12,185,787

196,956
57,100
5,956,224
4,322,097
167,151
10,699,528

23 Repairs and maintenance
Property, plant and equipment
Other - garden and grounds

24 Contracted services
Legal fees
Outsourced Internal Audit Fees
Security Services
Cleaning and Sanitation
Other
25 Finance costs
Borrowings

1,226,925

1,271,833

1,226,925

1,271,833

2,146,782
400,932
2,047,613
640,300
8,573,609
1,287,159
479,822

2,065,745
414,179
1,800,000
607,285
7,286,094
1,186,451
510,525

26 General expenses
General expenses include the following. (For more
detailed refer to the Detailed Statement of Financial
Performance)
Advertising & Marketing Expenses
Admin fees
Audit fees
Bank charges
Electricity, water & other Municipality costs
Insurance
Rental of buildings
General
Other

1,510,075
2,042,752
19,129,044

Page 28

1,260,944
1,316,368
16,447,590
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2015

Note
27 Employee benefits

R

2014
R

20

The College contributes to both the DHET Employee Retirement
Benefit Plan as well as Retirement Benefits plans relating to
College direct employed Employees.
Contribution plans recognised as an expense:
Government Employment Pension Fund
Old Mutual Retirement Benefit Plans

72,604
73,878
146,482

97,624
61,653
159,277

(30,801,601)

19,135,191

14,143,616
11,141,330
(1,234,850)
108,021,233
1,277
101,271,005

12,866,252
1,291,598
169
(731,134)
32,562,076

464,390

2,339,087

(19,023,026)

(30,789,673)

28 Cash flows from operating activities
Surplus/(deficit) for the year
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Movement in bad debts
Gain/loss on sale of assets
Movements in operating lease assets and accruals
DHET Services in kind
Other gains
Changes in working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables from exchange
transactions
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables from non-exchange
transactions
Increase/(decrease) in unspent conditional grants and receipts

(85,041,331)

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables from exchange
transactions
Increase/(decrease) in taxes and transfers payable
Net cash flows from operating activities
29 Change in accounting policy
There were no changes in accounting policy in the current and
prior year.
30 Prior-year adjustments

30.1 Correction of error
During the 2014 financial year, the college by applying the first time adoption of GRAP
made certain assuptions that was based on limited information relating to the useful lives
of fixed assets as well as the allocation of unallocated cash receipts that affects the
reporting on the student debtor accounts.

After careful consideration management has reviewed the assumptions taken during 2014
has come to a conclusion that judgement taken was incorrect resulting into a recalculation
of the financial values.
Additional information is available on request.
30.2 Reclassification
During the 2014 financial year, credit balances were recognised under Trade and other
receivables from exchange transactions which has subsequently been reclassified to
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions. A portion of Cash and cash
equivalents has also been subsequently reclassified to Other investments. Stipends were
previously classified under Unspent conditional grants and receipts which has been
subsequently reclassified to Trade and other payables from exchange transactions.

Presented below are those items contained in the statement of financial position,
statement of financial performance and cash flow statement that have been affected by the
prior-year adjustments and reclassifications:
Additional information is available on request.
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(7,448,461)

(1,450,244)

(12,070,355)

8,683,622
(442,845)
4,461,571

29,308,670
582,859
14,484,203
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Note

2014
Statement of financial position
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions, including
taxes and transfers
Other investments
Property, plant and equipment
Operating lease liability
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Operating lease liability

Debt impairment
Depreciation and amortisation
General expenses
- Audit fees - Current year
- Electricity, water & other Municipality costs

2014

As previously
reported

Correction of error

R

Note

R

Reclassification

Restated

3
4
5

23,494,621
8,595,313
31,194,524

(13,417,444)
1,954,203

(185,087)
27,696,493
-

23,309,535
22,874,362
33,148,727

8
9

6,558
135,675,651

14,703,547

185,087
-

191,645
150,379,198

7
10
12
7

731,134
21,394,345
7,357,047
707,346

(1,028,686)
2,854,822
-

503,714
36,288,868
(8,592,375)
(503,714)

1,234,848
56,654,528
1,619,494
203,632

154,564,469

1,414,170

15
16
18
19

3,697,316
366,679
17,136,315
187,854,078

(7,684,986)
1,954,203

7,100
(7,100)
343,321
3,898,390

3,704,416
359,579
9,794,651
193,706,671

21
22

1,021,028
11,391,680

(3,971,141)
1,474,572

4,241,711
-

1,291,598
12,866,252

26
26

1,400,000
7,657,757

400,000
(371,663)

-

1,800,000
7,286,094

22,397,742

(3,262,551)

-

19,135,191

11,391,680
1,021,028
(13,444,225)

1,474,572

-

13,444,225

-

12,866,252
1,291,598
-

(2,538,274)

(28,251,399)

-

(30,789,673)

(5,494,258)
6,332,802

(1,954,203)
(18,403,157)

-

(7,448,461)
(12,070,355)

(5,951,513)

35,260,183

-

29,308,670

15,905,964

(15,905,964)

-

Accumulated surplus / (deficit)
Statement of financial performance
Sale of goods and rendering of services
Rental of facilities and equipment
Other income
Government grants and subsidies

2015

-

155,978,639

During the 2014 financial year, the cash flow statement was not presented in accordance
with GRAP 2, which requires the cash flows from operating activities to be reported using
the direct method. The 2014 cash flow statement has been restated and the adjustments
are shown below:
Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows from operating activities
Surplus/(deficit) for the year
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Movement in bad debts
Movement in Prescribed Income
Changes in working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables from exchange
transactions
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables from non-exchange
transactions
Increase/(decrease) in unspent conditional grants and receipts
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables from exchange
transactions
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations

-

Receipts
Tuition fees
Sale of goods and rendering of services
Government grants and subsidies
Other Receipts

-

59,565,654
4,040,534
174,187,855
26,956,932

-

59,565,654
4,040,534
174,187,855
26,956,932

Payments
Employee costs
Suppliers

-

(200,476,601)
(49,638,514)

-

(200,476,601)
(49,638,514)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of capital assets
Movement in investments and interests

(17,207,923)
-

1,810,805
-

Cash flows from financing activities
Movement in operating lease liability

(731,134)

731,134
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(16,733)
-

(15,397,118)
(16,733)
-
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2015

Note

R

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

(1,357,048)
24,851,668
23,494,620

2014
R

-

31 Commitments
COMMITMENTS IN RESPECT OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
- Approved and contracted for
PPE

876,770
876,770

630,828
630,828

Total capital commitments

876,770

630,828

137,434
739,336
876,770

630,828
630,828

3,155,624
537,536
3,693,160

2,927,047
430,513
3,357,560

The capital commitments will be financed from
- Government Grants
- Own resources

32 Contingent liabilities
The College has no contigent liabilities at end of the reporting
period not already disclosed elsewhere in these AFS or as
providet for.
33 Contingent assets
The college did not have any contingent assets at year end.

34 Related parties
The follwing members and entities are deemed to be related
parties to the College.
Council Members
Refer to listing of Council Members as listed under general information.
Council members are currently not remunerated.
Members of key management

The following members are part of the Executive Team of the College and considered as
being Key Management;
Mr L Beech (CEO)
Mr C Coetzee (Deputy CEO: Academic)*
Mr NE Maggot (Deputy CEO: Corporate Services)*
Mrs T van der Merwe(Deputy CEO:Innovation & Development)*
The Management fee was paid as folllows:
DHET
Northlink College
DHET

The DHET is the controlling authority of the College.
The minister of Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET) is the executive
authority of DHET.
Other TVET Colleges

Other TVET Colleges are those that are also controlled by the DHET.
Council Members
Council members are not currently being compensated for
services.

35 Events after the reporting date
Adjusting events
There were no adjusting events after reporting date.
Non-adjusting events
There were no non-adjusting events after reporting date.
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(16,731)
(168,354)
(185,085)

(1,373,779)
24,683,314
23,309,535
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2015

Note

R

2014
R

36 Going concern
125,177,038

Accumulated Funds at the end of the financial year.
We draw attention to the fact that at 31 December 2015, the entity
had accumulated funds and that the entity's total assets exceed its
liabilities by the same amount.
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of
accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis
presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations
and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities,
contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary
course of business.
The ability of the entity to continue as a going concern is
dependent on a number of factors the most significant being the ongoing grant funding from Goverment and other national and
provincial departments.
37 Net Assets
In terms of the CET Act, the Minister of Higher Education and
Training may close a public college subject to certain conditions.
In such a case, the net assets of the college, comprising the
accumulated surplus and reserves, will vest in the Minister of
Higher Education and Training after the settlement of all liabilities.
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155,978,639

NORTHLINK TVET COLLEGE

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015

2015

Note

R

2014
R

38 Risk management and other financial instrument disclosures
Maximum credit risk exposure
Credit risk exposure arise from mainly from cash deposits, cash
equivalents and trade debtors. The college only deposits cash with
major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to
any one counter-party.
Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base,
comprising mainly of students of the college. Management
evaluates credit risk relating to customers on an ongoing basis. If
customers are independently rated, these ratings are used.
Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, management
assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its
financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk
limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance
with limits set by the council. The utilisation of credit limits is
regularly monitored.
The financial assets expose the college to credit risk. The value of
the maximum exposure to credit risk are as follows for each of
classes of financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions
Other Investments
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions, including
transfers

15,741,479
30,756,058
203,039
10,168,825

23,309,535
22,874,362
191,645
33,148,727

Liquidity risk
The college’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to
cover future commitments. The college manages liquidity risk
through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit
facilities.
Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate utilised borrowing
facilities are monitored.

The table below analyses the college’s financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
2015

Not later than one
year

Gross operating lease obligations
Borrowings
Trade and other payables
2015

7,288,552
1,715,304
65,338,150

2,185,180
6,861,215
-

Later than five years

Gross operating lease obligations
Borrowings
Trade and other payables
2014

Later than one year
and not later than five
years

13,150,662
Not later than one
year

Gross operating lease obligations
Borrowings
Trade and other payables

7,288,551
1,715,303
56,654,528
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Later than one year
and not later than five
years
2,003,945
6,861,215
-
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2015

Note
2014

2014

R

R

Later than five years

Gross operating lease obligations
Borrowings
Trade and other payables

14,865,966
-

Interest rate risk
As the college has no significant interest-bearing assets, the
college’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.
2015
R

The accounting policy for financial instruments was applied to the
following items in the statement of financial position:

2014
R

Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost

- Cash and cash equivalents
- Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions
- Other receivables from non-exchange transactions, including taxes and transfers
Financial assets at fair value
- Other investments

15,741,479
30,756,058
10,168,825

23,309,535
22,874,362
33,148,727

203,039

191,645

56,869,402

79,524,268

203,631
65,338,150
12,566,550

1,438,480
56,654,528
13,054,930

78,108,331

71,147,937

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

- Operating lease liability
- Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
- Borrowings

39 Tax exemption
The college is exempt from normal taxation in terms of section 10(1)(c)A (confirm) of the Income Tax Act, 1962 (Act No.58 of 1962).
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2015
2014
Note
R
R

Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions

139,964,857

122,472,800

3,277,974

3,704,416

Tuition and related fees

14

122,043,977

Rental of facilities and equipment

16

424,947

Bad debts recovered

18

Presribed Income

18

7,750,438

7,601,138

19

155,557,515

155,557,515

193,706,671

295,522,372

316,179,471

Sale of goods and rendering of services

15

Investment income

17

Profit/(loss) on sale of fixed assets

18

Other income

18

Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Government grants and subsidies

Total revenue
Expenses

1,358,094
15,861
-

5,093,566

107,493,979
359,579

1,120,176
22,070
(169)

2,171,612
193,706,671

Employee related costs and DHET management fee

20

216,602,583

200,476,601

Depreciation and amortisation

22

14,143,617

12,866,252

11,384,535

10,445,472

Debt impairment

21

Repairs and maintenance

23

Contracted services (Including Security)

24

Finance costs

25

Travel, accommodation and entertainment
Books and learning material
Printing and stationery

11,141,330

3,179,976

1,226,925

2,756,125

Marketing

26

Municipal services

26

General expenses

26

Internal Audit Fees

24

Administration costs - Fin transactions

26

Students expenses
External Audit Fees

26

Legal Expenses

24

Business Unit Expenses
Rental Paid

26

Other expenses (Council & Registration Licence & Projects)

26

Total expenses

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year
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1,271,833
2,516,126

27,102,550

8,487,753

7,160,462

2,146,782
8,573,609

4,510,928
2,065,745
7,286,094

1,458,762

4,657,386

2,047,613

1,800,000

3,437,535
-

3,054,679

57,100

801,253

196,956

2,429,202

2,689,313

2,042,752

1,316,368

400,932

479,822

326,323,973

(30,801,601)

(The supplementary information presented does not form part of the annual financial statements and is not fully audited).

5,354,111

28,556,490

5,026,379

Telephone, postage, internet, network and communication costs

1,291,598

414,179

510,525

297,044,280
19,135,191

